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KDDL Limited
(CIN - L33302HP1981PLC008123)

Registered Office: Plot No 3, Sector-III, Parwanoo, Dis�. Solan, (H. P) -173220
Email: investor.complaints.com; Website: www.kddl.com

Phone: 0172-2548223/24, Fax:  0172-2548302

NOTICE
thNOTICE is hereby given that 39  Annual General Mee�ng of KDDL Limited will be held at Hotel Timber Trail Resorts, 

thParwanoo, Dis. Solan (H.P.) - 173220 on Wednesday, 11  September, 2019 at 12.30 p.m. to transact the following 
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.    To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company (Standalone as well as 
st consolidated) for the financial year ended 31 March, 2019, the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors 

thereon. 

2. To consider and declare dividend of Rs. 2.50 per equity share of face value of  Rs. 10 each, for the financial year 
2018-19.

3.     To re- appoint Mr. Jai Vardhan Saboo (DIN: 00025499), who re�res by rota�on at this Annual General Mee�ng 
and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4. To appoint Statutory Auditors of the Company.

         To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as an 'Ordinary  
Resolu�on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�ons 139, 141 and 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder (including any statutory modifica�on(s) or 
reenactments thereof for the me being in force) S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registra�on 
No 301003E/E300005), be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company, (in place of  BSR & 
Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Gurgaon, the re�ring Auditor) for a term of five years to hold office from the 

th thconclusion of the 39  Annual General Mee�ng of the Company �ll the conclusion of the 44  Annual General 
Mee�ng at such remunera�on plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of travelling and out of  pocket 
expenses incurred in connec�on with the audit, as recommended by the Audit Commi�ee and as may be 
mutually agreed between the Board of Director of the Company and the Statutory Auditors from �me to �me.

  “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company including its Commi�ee thereof and/or Mr. 
Sanjeev Kumar Masown, Whole Time Director-cum- Chief Financial Officer or Mr. Brahm Prakash Kumar, 
Company Secretary be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, things and take all such 
steps as may be considered necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this Resolu�on.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. Authoriza�on for borrowings by way of unsecured fixed deposits from the shareholders of the Company.

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as an Ordinary 
Resolu�on:

 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 73 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the act”) and the rules made there under (including any statutory modifica�on (s) 
thereof for the �me being in force), approval of the shareholders of the Company, be and is hereby accorded to 
the Board of Directors of the Company to invite and accept from its members by way of unsecured Fixed Deposits 
subject to compliance of all the condi�ons and maximum limits as stated  under sec�on 73 of the act or any other 
applicable provisions of the act read with rules made thereunder.”
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 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Deposits accepted by the Company, may be cumula�ve or non-cumula�ve as per 
the scheme framed by the Company and carrying rates of interest for periods varying from one year to three 
years specified in the Circular to be specifically approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors, be and is hereby, specifically authorised to do all such acts, 
deeds and things as may be necessary to give effect to the above resolu�on and to se�le any ques�on, difficulty 
or doubt that may arise in this regard.” 

6. To appoint Mr. Torsten Buchwald (DIN: 08269386) as an Independent Director of the Company.

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as an Ordinary 
Resolu�on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�ons 149, 152 and any other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the rules made there under read with Schedule IV to the Act, the SEBI 
(Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 (“Lis�ng Regula�ons”) (including any 
statutory modifica�on(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the �me being in force) or any other applicable laws, 
rules and regula�ons as may be applicable from �me to �me and pursuant to the recommenda�on of 
Nomina�on &, Remunera�on Commi�ee and approval of the Board of Directors in their respec�ve mee�ngs 

thheld on 28  May, 2019, the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the 
appointment of Mr. Torsten Buchwald (DIN: 08269386), who was appointed as an Addi�onal (Independent) 

rdDirector of the Company by the Board of Directors w.e.f 3  November, 2018, who holds office up to the date of 
this Annual General Mee�ng and who has submi�ed a declara�on that he meets the criteria for independence 
as provided in Sec�on 149(6) of the Act and regula�on 16(1)(b) of the Lis�ng Regula�ons, as an Independent 

rdDirector of the Company, not liable to re�re by rota�on, to hold office for 1 (one) year commencing from 3  
November, 2018.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to se�le any 
ques�on, difficulty or doubt that may arise in giving effect to this resolu�on and to do all such acts, deeds, 
ma�ers and things and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 
resolu�on.”

7. To re-appoint Mrs. Ranjana Agarwal (DIN: 03340032) as an Independent Director of the Company.

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as a Special 
Resolu�on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�ons 149, 152 and any other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the rules made there under read with Schedule IV to the Act, the SEBI 
(Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 (“Lis�ng Regula�ons”) (including any 
statutory modifica�on(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the �me being in force) or any other applicable laws, 
rules and regula�ons as may be applicable from �me to �me and pursuant to the recommenda�on of 
Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee and approval of the Board of Directors in their respec�ve mee�ngs 

thheld on 28  May, 2019, the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the re-
appointment of Mrs. Ranjana Agarwal (DIN: 03340032) who was appointed as an Independent Director of the 

th thCompany at 34  AGM and holds office upto 5  August, 2019 and submi�ed a declara�on that she meets the 
criteria for independence as provided in Sec�on 149(6) of the Act and regula�on 16(1)(b) of Lis�ng Regula�ons, 
as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to re�re by rota�on to hold office for a second term of 5 

th th(five) consecu�ve years commencing from 6  August, 2019 upto 5  August, 2024.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the company be and is hereby authorized to se�le any 
ques�on, difficulty or doubt that may arise in giving effect to this resolu�on and to do all such acts, deeds, 
ma�ers and things and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 
resolu�on.”
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8. To re-appoint Mr. Anil Khanna (DIN: 00012232) as an Independent Director of the Company.

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as a Special 
Resolu�on: 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�ons 149, 152 and any other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the rules made there under read with Schedule IV to the Act, the SEBI 
(Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 (“Lis�ng Regula�ons”)(including any 
statutory modifica�on(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the �me being in force) or any other applicable laws, 
rules and regula�ons as may be applicable from �me to �me and pursuant to the recommenda�on of 
Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee and approval of the Board of Directors in their respec�ve mee�ngs 

thheld on 28  May, 2019, the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the re-
appointment of Mr. Anil Khanna (DIN: 00012232) who was appointed as an Independent Director of the 

thCompany at 34  AGM and holds office upto 5th August, 2019 and being eligible offers himself for re-
appointment as an Independent Director and who has submi�ed a declara�on that he meets the criteria for 
independence as provided in Sec�on 149(6) of the Act and regula�on 16(1)(b) of Lis�ng Regula�ons, as an 
Independent Director of the Company, not liable to re�re by rota�on, to hold office for a second term of 5 (five) 

th thconsecu�ve years commencing from 6  August, 2019 upto 5  August, 2024.” 

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the company be and is hereby authorized to se�le any 
ques�on, difficulty or doubt that may arise in giving effect to this resolu�on and to do all such acts, deeds, 
ma�ers and things and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 
resolu�on.”

9. To appoint Mr. Jagesh Kumar Khaitan (DIN: 00026264) as a Non-Execu�ve Director of the Company. 

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as a Special  
Resolu�on: 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�ons 149, 152 and any other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the rules made there, the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 (“Lis�ng Regula�ons”) (including any statutory modifica�on(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the �me being in force) or any other applicable laws, rules and regula�ons as may be 
applicable from �me to �me and pursuant to the recommenda�on of Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee 

thand approval of the Board of Directors in their respec�ve mee�ngs held on 28  May, 2019, the consent of the 
Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the appointment of Mr. Jagesh Kumar Khaitan (DIN: 

rd00026264) as a Non-Execu�ve Director  of the Company w.e.f 3  November, 2018, whose term shall be subject to 
re�rement by rota�on.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to se�le any 
ques�on, difficulty or doubt that may arise in giving effect to this resolu�on and to do all such acts, deeds, 
ma�ers and things and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 
resolu�on.”

10. To approve the con�nua�on of directorship of Mr. Jagesh Kumar Khaitan (DIN: 00026264) as a Non-Execu�ve 
Director of the Company. 

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as a Special 
Resolu�on: 

  “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of regula�on 17(1A) and any other applicable provisions of the 
Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, 
(including any statutory modifica�on(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the �me being in force) or any other 
applicable laws, rules and regula�ons as may be applicable from �me to �me and pursuant to the 
recommenda�ons of Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee and the Board of Directors in their respec�ve 
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thmee�ngs held on 28  May, 2019, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the 
con�nua�on of Directorship of Mr. Jagesh Kumar Khaitan (DIN: 00026264) as a Non- Execu�ve Non-Independent 

thDirector of the Company, who shall a�ain the age of 75 years on 10  February, 2020.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to se�le any 
ques�on, difficulty or doubt that may arise in giving effect to this resolu�on and to do all such acts, deeds, 
ma�ers and things and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 
resolu�on.”

11. Approval of Material Related Party Transac�ons. 

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as an Ordinary 
Resolu�on: 

 "RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of regula�on 23(4) and any other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 and 
Sec�on 188 and any other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Mee�ng of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 as applicable thereunder (including any statutory modifica�on(s) 
or re-enactment(s) thereof for the me being in force), and any amendments thereto and subject to such other 
approvals and sanc�ons of any authori�es as may be necessary, the consent of the shareholders of the Company 
be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors (which term shall include any Commi�ee cons�tuted by the 
Board or any person(s) authorized by the Board to exercise the powers conferred), to enter into 
contract(s)/arrangement(s)/transac�on(s)including sale/ purchase of Goods and Services, Reimbursement of 
Expenses, Rent, Salary payment, providing corporate guarantees and investment in equity or preference share 
capital (in the ordinary course of business and on arm's length price) investment in the shares 
(equity/preference) the value of which either singly or all taken together will not exceed  Rs. 150 Crore (Rupees 
one hundred fi�y Crore Only) with its subsidiary company i.e. Ethos Limited, a material subsidiary within the 
meaning of the aforesaid clause, and a related party, on such terms and condi�ons as may be mutually agreed 
upon.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company and/or a Commi�ee thereof, be and is hereby 
authorized to se�le all ma�ers arising out of and incidental thereto, and to sign and execute all deeds, 
applica�ons, documents and wri�ngs that may be required, on behalf of the Company and generally to do all 
acts, deeds, ma�ers and things that may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental thereto for the purpose of 
giving effect to this Resolu�on in the best interests of the Company”.

th
Date :  14  August, 2019                          For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Chandigarh

  Brahm Prakash Kumar 
 Company Secretary 

NOTES:
th1.      The Register of Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 4  September, 

th th2019 to 11 September, 2019 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of 39  Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) and 
payment of dividend for the financial year 2018-19, if declared at AGM.

2.     An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Sec�on 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, se�ng out the details 
pertaining to Special Business at the mee�ng, is annexed hereto.

3.      A member en�tled to a�end and vote at the Annual General Mee�ng (the “Mee�ng/AGM”) is en�tled to appoint a proxy 
to a�end and vote on a poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. The instrument 
appoin�ng the proxy in order to be effec�ve, should be duly stamped, filled, signed and must, be deposited at the 
registered office of the Company not less than forty eight hours before the commencement of the Mee�ng.
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 A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fi�y and holding on the aggregate not more than 
ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying vo�ng rights. 

 A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying vo�ng rights may 
appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

4.    Members holding shares in electronic form are hereby informed that bank par�culars registered against their 
respec�ve depository accounts will be used by the Company for payment of dividend. The Company or its 
Registrars cannot act on any request received directly from the Members holding shares in electronic form for 
any change of bank par�culars or bank mandates. Such changes are to be advised only to the Depository 
Par�cipant of the Members. Members holding shares in physical form and are desirous of either registering bank 
par�culars or changing bank par�culars already registered against their respec�ve folios for payment of 
dividend are requested to write to the Company/RTA.

5.      In accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made their under, the 
amount of dividend remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the due date is required to 
be transferred to the Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund (IEPF), cons�tuted by the Central Government. In 
terms of the provisions of Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund Authority (Accoun�ng, Audit, Transfer& 
Refund) Rules, 2016, the Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed amount lying with the 
Company on its website.

6.     To prevent fraudulent transac�ons, members are advised to exercise due diligence and no�fy the Company of 
any change in address or demise of any member as soon as possible. Members are also advised not to leave their 
demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned 
Depository Par�cipant and holdings should be verified.

7.      The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 
(PAN) by every par�cipant in securi�es market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, 
requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Par�cipants with whom they are maintaining their demat 
accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company.

8.    As required under regula�ons 36 (3) of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 
2015, the relevant details of Director re�ring by rota�on and/or seeking re-appointment at the ensuing AGM are 
furnished as annexure A to this no�ce of AGM.

th9.      The No�ce of 39   Annual General Mee�ng inter alia indica�ng the process and manner of e-vo�ng along with 
A�endance Slip and Proxy Form along with the Annual Report 2018-19 is being sent by electronic mode to those 
Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories, unless any Member has 
requested for a physical copy of the same. For Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses, physical 
copies are being set by the permi�ed mode.

10.     The Shareholders who have not registered their e-mail address are requested to update their e-mail addresses 
with their depository par�cipants to enable the Company to send all the communica�ons including Annual 
Report, No�ces, Circulars, etc. electronically.

th11.    Members may also note that the No�ce of 39  Annual General Mee�ng and the Annual Report for 2018-19 will 
also be available on the Company's website www. kddl.com for their download. The physical copies of the 
aforesaid documents will also be available at the Company's Registered Office for inspec�on during normal 
business hours on all working days. Even a�er registering for e-communica�on, members are en�tled to receive 
such communica�on in physical form, upon making a request for the same, by post free of cost. For any 
communica�on, the shareholders may also send requests to the Company's investor email id: 
investor.complaints@kddl.com.

12.    Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representa�ves to a�end the Mee�ng pursuant to 
Sec�on 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the company a cer�fied copy of the Board 
Resolu�on authorizing their representa�ve to a�end and vote on their behalf at the Mee�ng.
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13.    The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Sec�on 170 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the Directors are interested 
maintained under Sec�on 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspec�on by the members at the AGM. 

 EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN TERMS OF REGULATION 36(5) OF LISTING REGULATIONS, 2015

 ITEM NO. 4

th  The Shareholders of the Company at 37 Annual General Mee�ng appointed BSR & Co. LLP, Chartered 
Accountants, Gurgaon (Firm Registra�on No. 101248W/W-100022) as Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a 

thterm of two years to hold office from the conclusion of the 37  Annual General Mee�ng of the Company �ll the 
thconclusion of the 39  Annual General Mee�ng.

 Since, BSR & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Registra�on No. 101248W/W-100022),  Statutory Auditors of the 
company will hold office �ll the conclusion of 39th Annual General Mee�ng, hence, in accordance with the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the act”)  and on the recommenda�on of the Audit Commi�ee and in the best interest of 
the Company, the Board of Directors have considered and recommended the proposed appointment of S.R. 
Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registra�on No. 301003E/E300005) as Statutory Auditors' of the 

thCompany, for a term of five years to hold office from the conclusion of the 39  Annual General Mee�ng of the 
thCompany �ll the conclusion of 44  Annual General Mee�ng.

 S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP ('the Audit Firm'), is a firm of Chartered Accountants registered with the Ins�tute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. The Audit Firm was established in the year 1949 and is a Limited Liability Partnership Firm 
('LLP') incorporated in India. It has registered office at 22, Camac Street, Kolkata, apart from 7 other branch offices in 
various ci�es in India. The Audit Firm has a valid Peer Review cer�ficate and is part of S.R. Batliboi & Affiliates 
network of audit firms. It is primarily engaged in providing audit and assurance services to its clients.

 The Audit Firm have confirmed their eligibility as Auditors of the Company under Sec�on 139 of the act and the 
proposed appointment is within the limits laid down by or under the authority of the act  and are not disqualified for 
appointment under Sec�on 141 and other relevant provisions of the act, the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 or 
the rules and regula�ons made thereunder. The proposed fees payable to S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP is Rs. 20 lakhs p.a. 

 EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 ITEM NO. 5

  Sec�on 73(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the act”) makes it mandatory for the Company to obtain approval of 
General Mee�ng before accep�ng any borrowing from the shareholder by way of Fixed Deposits. As the 
condi�ons and maximum limits for accep�ng deposits from the Shareholders have been laid down in the 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (“the rules”) so approval of the shareholders is required for 
accep�ng deposits a�er complying with all the condi�ons stated in Sec�on 73(2) of the Act and within the limits 
prescribed under the rules. 

 In view of above, it is therefore necessary for the shareholders to pass an ordinary resolu�on required under 
sec�on 73(2) and other applicable provisions of the act as set out at Item No 5 of the no�ce. 

 No Director, Key Managerial Personnel and their rela�ves is in any way, concerned or interested in the resolu�on, 
set out at item no. 5 of the no�ce.

 The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolu�on as set out at item no. 5 in the No�ce for approval by the 
members.

 ITEM NO. 6

 The Board of Directors appointed Mr. Torsten Buchwald (DIN: 08269386) as an Addi�onal (Independent) 
rdDirector of the Company with effect from 3  November, 2018 who in terms of the provisions of Sec�on 161(1) of 
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the Act, shall hold office upto the date of this Annual General Mee�ng and is eligible for the appointment as an 
Independent Director. Also, pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 150(2) read with Sec�on 152 (2) of the Act, the 
appointment of Independent Director shall be approved by the members of the Company in general mee�ng. 

 Mr. Torsten Buchwald has given a declara�on to the effect that he meets the criteria of independence as 
provided under Sec�on 149(6) of the Act and regula�on 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 along with a declara�on under Sec�on 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the rules made there under, confirming he is not disqualified to be appointed as a Director of the Company.

 In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Torsten Buchwald fulfils the condi�ons for appointment as an Independent 
Director as specified in the Act and the Lis�ng Regula�ons. Mr. Torsten Buchwald is independent of the 
management.

 The Board of Directors has recommended the appointment of Mr. Torsten Buchwald as an Independent Director 
rdfor a term of 1 (one) year w.e.f. 3  November, 2018 on the Board of the Company.

 The brief profile, specific areas of his exper�se and other informa�on as required under SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 
2015, is provided at the end of the no�ce

        No Director, Key Managerial Personnel and their rela�ves is in any way, concerned or interested in the resolu�on, 
set out at item no. 6 of the no�ce.

 The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolu�on as set out at item no. 6 in the No�ce for approval by the 
members.

 ITEM NO. 7

 Mrs. Ranjana Agarwal (DIN: 03340032) is an Independent Director of the Company and her current term has 
thcompleted on 5  August, 2019. As per Sec�on 149(10) of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) an Independent 

Director shall hold office for a term of upto five years but shall be eligible for re-appointment for a further term 
upto five years on passing a special resolu�on by the Company.

 Mrs. Ranjana Agarwal has given a declara�on to the effect that she meets the criteria of independence as 
provided under Sec�on 149(6) of the Act and regula�on 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 along with a declara�on under Sec�on 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the rules made there under, confirming she is not disqualified to be re-appointed as a Director of the 
Company.

 In the opinion of the Board, Mrs. Ranjana Agarwal fulfils the condi�ons for re-appointment as an Independent 
Director as specified in the Act and the Lis�ng Regula�ons. Mrs. Ranjana Agarwal is independent of the 
management.

 The Board of Directors, on the basis of the report of performance evalua�on, has recommended re-appointment 
of Mrs. Ranjana Agarwal as an Independent Director of the Company for a term of 5 (five) consecu�ve years w.e.f. 

th6  August, 2019.

 The brief profile, specific areas of her exper�se and other informa�on as required under SEBI (LODR) 
Regula�ons, 2015, is provided at the end of the no�ce. 

 No Director, Key Managerial Personnel and their rela�ves is in any way, concerned or interested in the resolu�on, 
set out at item no. 6 of the no�ce.

 The Board recommends the Special Resolu�on as set out at item no. 7 in the No�ce for approval by the members.
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 ITEM NO. 8

 Mr. Anil Khanna (DIN: 00012232) is an Independent Director of the Company and his current term has completed 
thon 5  August, 2019. As per Sec�on 149(10) of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) an Independent Director shall 

hold office for a term of upto five years but shall be eligible for re-appointment for a further term upto five years 

on passing a special resolu�on by the Company.

 Mr. Anil Khanna has given a declara�on to the effect that he meets the criteria of independence as provided 

under Sec�on 149(6) of the Act and regula�on 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 along with a declara�on under Sec�on 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with the rules made there under, confirming he is not disqualified to be re-appointed as a Director of the 
Company.

 In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Anil Khanna fulfils the condi�ons for re-appointment as an Independent Director 

as specified in the Act and the Lis�ng Regula�ons. Mr. Anil Khanna  is independent of the management.

 The Board of Directors, on the basis of the report of performance evalua�on, has recommended re-appointment 
thof Mr. Anil Khanna as an Independent Director of the Company for a term of 5 (five) consecu�ve years w.e.f. 6  

August, 2019. 

 The brief profile, specific areas of his exper�se and other informa�on as required under SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 

2015, is provided at the end of the no�ce. 

 No Director, Key Managerial Personnel and their rela�ves is in any way, concerned or interested in the resolu�on, 

set out at item no. 8 of the no�ce.

 The Board recommends the Special Resolu�on as set out at item no. 8 in the No�ce for approval by the members.

 ITEM NO.9

th th The shareholders of the Company at their 34  Annual General Mee�ng held on 6  August, 2014 appointed Mr. 
th thJagesh Kumar Khaitan as an Independent Director for a period of five years i.e from 6  August, 2014 to 5  August, 

2019. In accordance with the provisions of regula�on 16(1)(b)(viii) of the SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015, the 
rdBoard of Directors of the Company on the request of Mr. Khaitan, at its mee�ng held on 3  November, 2018 

rdchanged the designa�on of Mr. Khaitan  from Independent to Non-Execu�ve Director w.e.f 3  November, 2018. 

 In accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015, 

the approval of shareholders of the Company is required for the appointment of Mr. Khaitan as a Non-Execu�ve 

Non-IndependentDirector.

 Mr. Khaitan has given a declara�on under Sec�on 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made 

there under, confirming he is not disqualified to be appointed as a Director of the Company.

 The brief profile, specific areas of her exper�se and other informa�on as required under SEBI (LODR) 

Regula�ons, 2015, is provided at the end of the no�ce.

 No Director, Key Managerial Personnel and their rela�ves is in any way, concerned or interested in the resolu�on, 

set out at item no. 9 of the no�ce.

 The Board recommends the Special Resolu�on as set out at item no. 9 in the No�ce for approval by the members.

 ITEM NO. 10

st In accordance with the provisions of regula�on 17(1A) of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015, effec�ve from 1  April, 

2019, no non-execu�ve Director shall be appointed or con�nue the directorship, who has a�ained the age of 75 

years except with the approval of shareholders accorded by way of special resolu�on. Mr. Jagesh Kumar Khaitan, 
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rdwhose designa�on was changed from Independent Director to Non-Execu�ve Director w.e.f 3  November, 2018, 

by virtue of an amendment in regula�on 16(1)(b)(viii) of the SEBI LODR, 2015 and for whose appointment , the 
thapproval of shareholders has been sought in item no. 9 of this no�ce, will a�ain the age of 75 years on 10  

February, 2020. 

 Mr. Khaitan is a Director of the Company since 1990. He is a Graduate and has vast experience in edible oil 
industry. He led Amrit Banaspa� Co. Ltd., a well-known company manufacturing edible oils, for almost 43 years. 
He had been conferred the Honour of “Legend” by Globe Oil India in recogni�on of his services and contribu�on 
for the be�erment and upli�ment of the edible oil industry. He is Chairman and Managing Director of Kuantum 
Papers Ltd., a large agro-based Paper Mill in Punjab.

 Considering his seniority, exper�se, knowledge, effec�ve par�cipa�on & contribu�on, the Board recommends 
the Special Resolu�on set out at Item No. 10 of the No�ce for approval by the members.

 The brief profile, specific areas of his exper�se and other informa�on as required under SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 
2015, is provided at the end of the no�ce. 

 No Director, Key Managerial Personnel and their rela�ves is in any way, concerned or interested in the resolu�on, 
set out at item no. 8 of the no�ce.

 ITEM NO. 11

 Pursuant to Sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Mee�ngs 
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and regula�on 23(4) of SEBI LODR, 2015 the Company is required to obtain 
prior approval of the members by a resolu�on in case, Related Party Transac�ons exceed such sum as is specified 
in the rules/regula�ons. 

 However, pursuant to regula�on 23(4) of SEBI LODR, 2015, approval of the shareholders through resolu�on is 
required for all 'material' related party transac�ons (RPT) even if they are entered into in the ordinary course of 
business on an arm's length basis. For this purpose, a RPT will be considered 'material' if the transac�on / 
transac�ons to be entered into individually or taken together with previous transac�ons during a financial year 
exceeds 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements of 
the Company. 

 The transac�ons (in the ordinary course of business and at arm's length price) to be entered into by the 
Company, together with transac�ons already entered into by the Company with Ethos Limited, a material 
subsidiary and a related party are es�mated to exceed 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company 

stas per the Audited Financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31  March, 2019

 The other related informa�on as envisaged under Companies (Mee�ng of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and 
any amendments thereto are given herein below:           
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 Hence, owing to the materiality of the contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/transac�on(s) with Ethos Limited, a material 
subsidiary, the approval of the members is being sought through this resolu�on.

 None of the Directors of the Company or key managerial personnel or their rela�ves except Mr. Yashovardhan 
Saboo and Mr. Anil Khanna are concerned and interested in the Resolu�on as set out at Item no. 11 of the No�ce. 

 The Board recommends the Special Resolu�on set out at Item No. 11 of the No�ce for approval by the 
Shareholders.

 The brief profile, specific areas of exper�se and other informa�on of directors seeking appointment/re-
appointment:

KDDL Limited
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1 Name of the related party and nature
of rela�onship;

Ethos Limited, a material subsidiary  

2 Name of the director or key managerial 
personnel interested in any contract 
or arrangement, if any  

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo  

Mr. Anil Khanna  

3 Nature of rela�onship  Directors in both companies.  

4. The nature, dura�on of the contract 
and par�culars of the contract or 
arrangement, material terms of 
contract or value  

 

Nature : Sale/ Purchase of Goods and  Services, 
Reimbursement of Expenses, Rent, Salary 
payment, providing corporate guarantees and 
investment in equity or preference share 
capital  

 Value : Rs. 150  Crores  

Material Terms : As agreed between par�es 
from �me to �me  

5  Any advance paid or received for the 
contract or ar rangement, if any;  

NA  

6  Any other informa�on relevant or 
important for the members to take a 
decision on the proposed resolu�on  

NA  

Name of the 

Director

Mr. Torsten 

Buchwald

Mrs. Ranjana 

Agarwal

Mr. Anil 

Khanna

Mr. Jagesh 

Kumar Khaitan

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Jai 
Vardhan
Saboo

Date of Birth 6th March, 1968 25th November, 

1956

20th March, 

1959

10th February, 

1945

 

Date of first 

appointment 

on the Board

 

 

3rd

 

November, 

2018

 

as an 

Addi�onal 

Director

 

9th

 

September, 

2013

 
22nd

 

December, 

2014

 
26th

 

February, 

1990

 

Date of re-

appointment

 3rd

 

November, 

2018 

 6th

 

August, 2019

 

6th

 

August, 

2019

 3rd

 

November, 

2018

 
   

th7  July, 1963

th
12  
December, 
2016

th11  September, 
2019



     
KDDL Limited

11

Name of the 

Director

Mr. Torsten 

Buchwald

Mrs. Ranjana 

Agarwal

Mr. Anil 

Khanna

Mr. Jagesh 

Kumar Khaitan

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Jai 
Vardhan
Saboo

Exper�se in 
specific 
func�onal 
areas 

 

 

Mr. Torsten 
Buchwald is a 
German na�ve 
and has earned 
a Bachelor in 
Mechanical 
Engineering. He 
is having 25 
years of rich 
experience in 
automo�ve, 
marine, 

Mrs.Ranjana 
Agarwal is 
Director of our 
Company since 
2013. She is a 
Bachelor of 
Economics 
(Hons.) and a 
Fellow Member 
of the Ins�tute of 
Chartered Accountants 
of India.

Mr.Anil Khanna 

is Director of 

our Company 

since 2004. He 

is a Bachelor of 

Arts 

(Economics, 

Mathema�cs), 

Chartered 

Accountant and 

FCA DISA. He is 

Mr. Jagesh 

Khaitan is 

Director of our 

Company since 

1990. He is a 

Graduate and 

has vast 

experience in 

edible oil 

industry. He led 

Amrit 

and finance in 
various 
organisa�on. He 
is a Managing 
Partner of I - CI 
Global Services, 
LLC, Mcallen, 

As a 

Senior Partner in 
Deloi�e Haskins 
&

 

Sells, she 

started their Delhi 
prac�ce and was 

Counsellor by 

Entrepreneur 

Development 

Ins�tute (EDI), 

Ahmedabad.

of his services 

and 

contribu�on for 

the be�erment 

and upli�ment 

of the edible oil 
Texas. Has 

managing the 

industry. He 
Chairman and 
Managing 

is 
delivered results 
in a number of 
global 
assignments. He 
is Member of 
the Board of 
various 
companies and 
non-profit 
organiza�ons.

firm up to 2000. 

She is the 

recipient of the 

Indira Gandhi 

Priyadarshini 

Award for 

professional 

excellence and 

entrepreneurship.

Director of 

Kuantum Papers 

Ltd., a large 

agro-based 

Paper Mill in 

Punjab.

  

 
 

aerospace and 
energy markets, 
thereof more 

 
 

She founded 
in prac�ce and 

has over 34 

years of post-

Banaspa�Co. 

Ltd., a well-

known 
than 10 years in 
the US and 
Mexico. He has 
been Proficie nt 
CEO and trusted 
advisor with a 
solid experience 
in 
manufacturing, 
sales & business 
development, 

Vaish & 

Associates, 

Chartered 

Accountants in 

1985. She is on 

board of many 

reputed 

companies.

qualifica�on 

experience. He 

is a Cer�fied 

Arbitrator by 

the Ins�tute of 

Chartered 

Accountants of 

India and is also 

cer�fied as 

Business 

company 

manufacturing 

edible oils, for 

almost 43 

years. He had 

been conferred 

the Honour of 

“Legend” by 

Globe Oil India 

in recogni�on 

Mr. Jai 
Vardhan 
Saboois 
Director of 
our Company
since 2016.
He is an 
M.Tech from 
Virgina Tech 
University,
MBA from 
Kellogg School
of Manage-
ment and is 
a fellow of 
Wharton 
School at 
Penn State. 
He has over 
20 years of 
interna�onal 
business 
experience 
spanning 
across the US, 
China and Far 
East. He is 
managing 
and ac�vely 
pursuing 
business 
interests in
USA.



KDDL Limited
     

Name of the 

Director

Mr. Torsten 

Buchwald

Mrs. Ranjana 

Agarwal

Mr. Anil 

Khanna

Mr. Jagesh 

Kumar Khaitan

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Jai 
Vardhan
Saboo

Qualifica�on Bachelor’s 
Degree in 
mechanical 
engineering

 

 

Bachelor of 

Economics 

(Hons.), FCA

 

Bachelor of Arts 
(Economics, Mathema�c)
Chartered Accountant 
and FCA DISA

 

 

Graduate

 
No. Board 

Mee�ng 

a�ended in 

financial year 

2018-19
  

One Six Nine Five

Services Limited,

Ugro Capital 

Limited, ICRA 

Online Limited
 

NA
 

Six
 

One
 

Nil

 

Nil

 

2100 Equity 

Shares

 
NA

 

NA

 

NA

 

Membership/ 

Chairmanship 

of Commi�ees 

of other Public 

companies 

(includes only 

Audit Commi�ee 

and 

Stakeholders’ 

Rela�onship 

Commi�ee)

 Number of 

shares held in 

the Company

 Rela�onships 

with other 

directors/KMP

  

Directorship 

held in other
 

Public 

companies 

(excluding 

foreign 

company and 

sec�on 8 

company) 

NA ICRA Limited,

Shubham Housing 

Development 

Finance Company 

Limited, Indo 

Rama Synthe�cs 

(India) Limited, 

ICRA 

Management 

Consul�ng 

Ethos Limited

Two
 

466 Equity 

Shares

 
NA

 

 

Kuantum 

Papers Limited, 

Kapedome 

Enterprises 

Limited

 

M.Tech
MBA

Five

NA

NA

Nil

Brother of 
Mr. 
Yashovardhan
Saboo, Chairman 
& Managing 
Director 
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BOARD’S REPORT
Dear Members,

thYour Directors present this 39  Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts of the Company for the 
stfinancial year ended 31  March, 2019.

OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS

Financial Results (Standalone and Consolidated)

The summary of opera�ng results for the year 2018-19 is given below: 
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Total Income

Profit before interest, deprecia�on and excep�onal item

Less: Finance Cost

Gross Profit

Less: Deprecia�on and amor�sa�on

Profit before Share of Profit of an associate

Share of Profit of an associate

Profit Before tax

Less: Tax Expense

Net Profit / (Loss) for the Year

Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) (OCI)

Total Comprehensive income / (Loss) for the period

Par�culars
Standalone Consolidated

2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18
1790.7

363.4

62.8

300.6

77.6

223.0 

-

223.0

65.5

157.5

-4.1

153.3

1506.1

322.3

48.3

274.0

74.0

200.0 

-

200.0

59.3

140.7

-3.01

137.7

6271.8

684.1

148.6

535.5

131.3

404.2

0.0

404.2

152.4

251.8

-8.3

243.5

5069.7

494.3

120.3

374.0

121.3

252.7

-0.3

252.4

70.7

181.7

1.9

183.6

Amount in Rs millions

PERFORMANCE AND PROJECTIONS

During the year the Company achieved consolidated sales revenue of Rs. 6272 million against Rs. 5070 million in 
the previous year, registering a healthy growth of 23.7%. Profit before tax improved from Rs. 252.7 million to Rs. 
404.2 million.

Sales revenue from manufacturing opera�ons on standalone basis grew by 18.9% to Rs. 1790.7 million from Rs. 
1506.1 million in the previous year. The Company earned net profit a�er tax of Rs. 157.5 million against Rs. 140.7 
million in the previous year. 

Sales revenue in ETHOS, the retail business of the Company improved from Rs. 3578 million in the previous year 
to Rs. 4451 million, registering a growth of 24%. The retail business segment reported profit before tax of 
Rs. 218.3 million against profit before tax of Rs 52 million in previous year. 

Manufacturing Business Segments

The main revenue of the manufacturing business segment is from watch components. The Swiss watch market, 
the main des�na�on for our exports, witnessed a healthy growth of 6.3% over 2017 compared to a growth of 
2.7% in the previous year. Growth was par�cularly strong during the first half of the year (+10.6%) but slowed (to 
+2.3%) in the second half.  The domes�c watch market also showed modest growth. The revenue of the Company 
from watch components improved by 19.8%; major growth of 25.9% was contributed by the exports market 
whereas domes�c revenue improved by 9.6%. 



The other major segment of revenue is from the precision engineering business, wherein the Company registered 
a growth of 14% over the previous year. The revenue growth from domes�c market was 28%. The direct exports 
declined by 12% as some of the direct export customers shi�ed their base to India and sales to such accounts now 
qualifies as indirect export, thus included with domes�c revenue. The revenue from ornamental packaging 
business of the Company witnessed a growth of 48%. 

We con�nue to move up the value chain in the watch component manufacture. We are implemen�ng mul�ple 
ini�a�ves to enhance capabili�es to manufacture more complex products and improve produc�vity. We 
con�nue to focus on manufacturing excellence with the goals of world class delivery compliance, quality and �me 
to market (TAT). The revenue from the watch components business is expected to grow in the range of 12-15%, 
driven by the ini�a�ves to make higher-value products. 

Precision engineering business of the Company is expected to register healthy growth as we con�nue to expand 
our capabili�es and capacity; we expect a growth of about 30% from this business. Your Company has established 
its reputa�on as a quality supplier with the ability to meet sophis�cated customer needs. By focusing on the vital 
levers of opera�onal performance while adding key technical capabili�es and show-casing our capabili�es at 
leading interna�onal trade exhibi�ons and on digital pla�orms, we are confident of con�nuing growth and 
improved returns in the ensuing periods.  

Retail Business Segments

FY 18-19 has been a year with an impressive performance by the retail business with healthy revenue growth of 
24%. Gross Margin also showed an impressive increase to 27.5% of net sales from 23.5% in the previous year. 
EBIDTA margins also increased by 69% from 4.5% of total income to 7.6 %. Profit for the year increased from Rs. 40 
million to Rs. 132 million, an increase of 226%. 

This excep�onal performance is a result of the various strategic ini�a�ves that the Company has been pursuing 
over the last few years. The Company has increased its por�olio of brands for which it is the exclusive retail 
partner in India. In FY19, the sale of exclusive brands accounted for 16% of the sales, up from 13% in FY18. In 
terms of share of gross margins, the share of exclusive brands has increased from 21% to 26%. This has had a 
salutary impact on the overall gross margins of the Company. 

The omni–channel strategy of providing a seamless online and offline experience to the customer con�nues to be 
very successful with almost 28% of the en�re sales of the Company coming from the leads generated from the 
Company's digital pla�orms. This is despite the absence of certain high-profile brands from the program due to 
brand restric�ons. 

The Company also focused on in-store experience and has invested in the renova�ons at its major stores. The 
impact on sales of such improvements is evident from the improved sales performance at these stores. The 
Company plans to invest further at other stores for upgrading the look and feel of its stores. In addi�on to this, the 
Company invested in its first flagship store in Hyderabad. This store will be, in many ways, groundbreaking for 
luxury retail in India in terms of the size, splendor and use of state-of-the-art technology. The store has been 
recently launched in FY1920. The Company will be closely watching the performance of this store for deciding on 
launching more such stores.

 In terms of new ver�cals of growth, the Company is con�nuing to invest in a�er-sales service by launching a state-
of-the-art service center at New Delhi. The service center has recruited highly experienced foreign-trained 
service technicians and has already acquired accredita�ons from major watch brands. In addi�on to this, the 
Company also forayed into the business of sales of pre-owned watches where the Company sees a large 
poten�al. Pending certain clarifica�ons on the legal aspects, the sales in the ini�al few months of the business is 
quite encouraging for a scaling up the business.
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In January 2019 the Company acquired Es�ma AG, a renowned Swiss watch hands manufacturing Company in 
Grenchen, Switzerland. The underlying strategy of this acquisi�on of a compe�tor in Switzerland is to protect and 
enhance our market share among Swiss customers who prefer to purchase Swiss made products either due to 

sttheir brand image or to meet the new SWISS ORIGIN regula�ons that came into effect from 1   January 2017. 

This acquisi�on fits into the strategy of KDDL to expand its footprint in Swiss manufacturing; we are confident to 
turn around to stem the losses that Es�ma was incurring by using our superior know how and experience in watch 
hands manufacture in India. The Swiss Origin regula�ons will be act as a catalyst for the revival and growth of this 
business unit. 

The Company's Swiss subsidiary, Pylania SA in Switzerland con�nued to improve its business revenue from all 
opera�onal areas. Its financial performance was as per expecta�on. 

In addi�on, the merger of the 100% subsidiary company, Satva Jewellery and Design Limited (SJDL) with the 
parent company remained in progress. 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Sec�on 129(3) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable accoun�ng standards. As per the provisions of Sec�on 136 of the 

stCompanies Act, 2013, the audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31  March, 2019 in respect of 
each subsidiary are also available on the website of the Company i.e www.kddl.com. A copy of the said audited 
accounts shall be provided to shareholders upon request. A separate statement containing salient features of the 
financial statements in prescribed format AOC- 1 is annexed as Annexure 1 to this report. The statement also 
provides the details of performance and financial posi�ons of each of the subsidiary Company.

DIVIDEND 

The Company has always strived to maintain a balance by providing an appropriate return to the Shareholders 
while simultaneously retaining a reasonable por�on of the profit to maintain healthy financial leverage with a 
view to support and fund the future expansion plans. Accordingly, your directors have recommended a dividend 
of 25 % i.e. Rs. 2.50 per share to the equity shareholders  of the Company. The dividend shall be paid a�er the 
approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng.

The total financial outgo of the dividend to be paid to shareholders will be Rs. 35.06 million (inclusive of Corporate 
Dividend Tax).

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

The Board of Directors proposes to transfer Rs. 40 million to its General Reserves. 

CHANGE IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

During the year, there has been no change in the authorized share capital of the Company. The Company allo�ed 
2,64,150 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each to a promoter group en�ty upon conversion of Zero Coupon Conver�ble 
Warrants, issued on preferen�al basis, at a price of Rs. 265/- per share (inclusive of face value of Rs. 10/- each and 
premium of Rs. 255/- each). Also, the Company allo�ed 4,16,666 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each by way of 
preferen�al allotment, to non-promoter group en��es at a price of Rs. 480/- per share (inclusive of face value of 
Rs. 10/- each and premium of Rs. 470/- each). C consequently, the paid-up equity share capital of the Company 
has increased during the year, from Rs. 109,527,920/- (Rupees ten crores ninety five lakhs twenty seven 
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thousands nine hundred twenty only) to Rs. 116,336,080/- (Rupees eleven crores sixty three lakhs thirty six 
thousands eight only). Further, the Company has not issued shares with differen�al vo�ng rights.

SUBSIDIARY

During the year under review, “Cadrafin GmbH” an associate of Kamla Interna�onal Holdings SA, a wholly owned 
subsidiary Company was closed. Also, the Company acquired a Swiss Watch Hands manufacturing Company 
named “Es�ma AG”, Allerheiligenstrasse 30, 2540 Grenchen, Switzerland through its subsidiaries “Pylania SA” 
and special purpose vehicle “Kamla Interna�onal Holdings SA. This  acquisi�on will help the Company to capture 
addi�onal market share of customers in European market serviced by Es�ma.

PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

The details of Loans, Guarantees and Securi�es, and Investments covered under Sec�on 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 are given in financial statements of the Company. 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

The par�culars of contracts or arrangements with related par�es referred to in Sec�on 188(1) of the Companies 
Act 2013 for the Financial Year 2018-19 in the prescribed Form AOC 2 has been enclosed with the report as 
Annexure 2.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

(a)  Directors :

 During the year under review, the following changes occurred in the composi�on of the Board of 
Directors: 

 (i)  In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Act and the Ar�cles of Associa�on of 
the Company, Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Masown (DIN-03542390) was appointed as Whole �me Director 
(Key Managerial Personnel with func�onal designa�on as Chief  Financial Officer) of the Company for 

sta period of 3 (three) years w.e.f. 31  May, 2018. 

rd (ii) Mr. Torsten Buchwald (DIN- 08269386)was appointed as an addi�onal Director (Independent) w.e.f 3  
November, 2018 who  shall hold office upto the date of ensuing Annual General Mee�ng of the 
Company and it is proposed to appoint him as an Independent Director for a period of 1(One) year 

rdw.e.f 3  November, 2018.

 (iii) The Board of Directors of the Company on the request of Mr. Jagesh Kumar Khaitan, at its mee�ng 
rdheld on 3  November, 2018 changed the designa�on of Mr. Khaitan from Independent to Non-

rdExecu�ve Director w.e.f 3  November, 2018. The resolu�on seeking approval of the shareholders for 
the appointment of Mr. Khaitan as a Non-Execu�ve Director has been set out in the no�ce convening 

th39  Annual General Mee�ng (AGM).

 (iv) In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company, Mr. Jai 
Vardhan Saboo, Non-Execu�ve Director of the Company is liable to re�re by rota�on at the ensuing 
Annual General Mee�ng and being eligible, has offered himself for re- appointment

(b)  Key Managerial Personnel :

st (i)  Mr. Raman Sood, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer resigned w.e.f. 31  May, 2018. 

 (ii) Mr. Brahm Prakash Kumar was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the 
stCompany w.e.f. 1  June, 2018. 
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DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

All Independent Directors of the Company have given declara�on that they meet the criteria of independence as 
provided under Sec�on 149 (6) of the Act and the regula�on 16(1) (b) of the regula�ons.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN         

The extract of Annual Return, in Form MGT-9 for the Financial Year 2018-19 is enclosed with this report as 
Annexure III.

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The detail of number of mee�ngs of the Board held during the financial year 2018-19 forms part of the Report on 
Corporate Governance in terms of Regula�on 34(3) of the Securi�es & Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng 
obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015.

BOARD'S COMMITTEES 

The Board of Directors of the Company cons�tuted the following Commi�ees :

a)  Audit Commi�ee 

b)  Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee 

c)  Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Commi�ee

d)  Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee 

The Commi�ees composi�on, charters and mee�ngs held during the year and a�endance thereat, are given in 
the Report of Corporate Governance forming part of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of sec�on 134(3)(c) read with 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI 
(LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 the Board confirm and report that:—

 (a)  in the prepara�on of the annual accounts, the applicable accoun�ng standards had been followed along 
with proper explana�on rela�ng to material departures;

 (b)  the directors had selected such accoun�ng policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and es�mates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

 (c)  the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,2013  for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preven�ng and detec�ng fraud and other irregulari�es;

 (d)  the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

 (e)  the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such 
internal financial controls are adequate and were opera�ng effec�vely.

  (f)  the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems were adequate and opera�ng effec�vely.
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CREDIT RATING

During the year, ICRA Limited has upgraded the long-term ra�ng for Line of Credit (LOC) to [ICRA] BBB+  
from[ICRA] BBB and short-term ra�ng for LOC to [ICRA]A2 from [ICRA] A3+. The outlook on the long-term ra�ng is 
'Stable'.

MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENTS

In pursuance to Sec�on 134(3)(l) of the Companies Act, 2013, no material changes and commitments have 
occurred a�er the closure of the financial year to which the financial statements relate �ll the date of this report, 
affec�ng the financial posi�on of the Company.

MATERIAL ORDERS

In pursuance to Rule 8 (5) (vii) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, no significant or material orders were 
passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impac�ng the going concern status and Company's opera�ons in 
future.

MECHANISM FOR EVALUATION OF BOARD

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI(LODR) Regula�ons, 2015, an annual evalua�on 
of the performance of the Board, its Commi�ees and of individual directors has been made and board expressed 
its sa�sfac�on. For this purpose, a structured procedure was adopted a�er taking into considera�on the various 
aspects of the Board's func�oning, composi�on of the Board and its various Commi�ees, execu�on and 
performance of specific du�es, obliga�ons and governance.

The independent directors in the mee�ng reviewed the performance of non-independent directors and the 
board of directors as a whole, Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of execu�ve directors 
and non-execu�ve directors. 

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE POLICY

The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a framework in rela�on to remunera�on of Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel of the Company. This policy also lays down criteria 
for selec�on and appointment of Board Members. The detail of this policy is explained in the Report on Corporate 
Governance which forms part of this report. 

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instances of fraud and 
mismanagement, if any. The policy has a systema�c mechanism for directors and employees to report concerns 
about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or viola�on of the Company's code of conduct or policy. The 
policy is available on the Company's website at the link: h�ps://www.kddl.com/wp-content/ uploads/2016/12 
/KDDL_Whistle_Blower_Policy.pdf

During the year, no whistle blower event was reported and mechanism is func�oning well. No personnel have 
been denied access to the Audit Commi�ee.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY, ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO

The informa�on required under sec�on 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 rela�ng to “Conserva�on of Energy, Technology Absorp�on and Foreign Exchange 
Earnings and Outgo” is given in the Annexure IV forming an integral part of this Report. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

The informa�on required pursuant to Sec�on 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and under rule 5(2) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 has been given in  Annexure-
V of this report.

STATUTORY AUDITORS 

th The Shareholders of the Company at 37 Annual General Mee�ng appointed BSR & Co. LLP, Chartered 
Accountants, Gurgaon(Firm Registra�on No. 101248W/W-100022) as Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a 

thterm of two years to hold office from the conclusion of the 37  Annual General Mee�ng of the Company �ll the 
thconclusion of the 39  Annual General Mee�ng. 

Since, BSR & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Registra�on No.101248W/W-100022), Statutory Auditors of the 
thcompany will hold office �ll the conclusion of 39  Annual General Mee�ng, hence, it is proposed to appoint  S.R. 

Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registra�on No301003E/E300005). as Statutory Auditors of the 
thCompany for a term of five years to hold office from the conclusion of the 39  Annual General Mee�ng of the 

thCompany �ll the conclusion of the 44  Annual General Mee�ng. The Company has received a le�er from them to 
the effect that their appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed limits under sec�on 139 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not disqualified for such appointment within the meaning of sec�on 141 
of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have submi�ed Auditors' Report on the financial statements (standalone 
stand consolidated) of the Company for the financial year ended 31  March, 2019. The reports do not contain any 

reserva�on, qualifica�on or adverse remark. Informa�on referred in the Auditors' Report are self-explanatory 
and do not call for any further comments.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, the Company 
has appointed M/s Ajay K Arora, Prac�cing Company Secretaries(C.P. No. 993) to undertake the Secretarial Audit 
of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report in prescribed format MR.-3 given by aforesaid Secretarial Auditors is 
annexed to this Board Report as Annexure-VI and forms an integral part. 

The report doesn't contain any reserva�on, qualifica�on or adverse remark. Informa�on referred in the Auditors' 
Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

TRANSFER OF UNPAID AND UNCLAIMED AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION 
FUND

During the financial year, the Company has transferred Rs. 3,53,620 being the amount of unpaid/unclaimed 
dividend of financial year 2010-11 to Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund established by the Central 
Government, in terms of the provisions of Sec�on 125 and  the Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund Authority 
(Accoun�ng, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, of the Companies Act, 2013.
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RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The risk management framework defines the risk management approach of the Company and includes periodic 
review of such risks and also documenta�on, mi�ga�ng controls and repor�ng mechanism of such risks.

Some of the risks that the Company is exposed to are:

Risks of Specific Nature

Company as a part of normal business monitoring review and development plans, iden�fies the specific risks for 
each business segment and develops necessary ac�on plan to minimise the impact of same on business 
performance. Based on the present opera�ons and areas of interest for the Company, following specific nature 
risks are iden�fied: 

· Risks due to decline in overall demand for watches and over dependence on watch segment;

· Risks pertaining to over dependence on few customers;

· Foreign Exchange Risks;

· Risk related to availability of Skilled manpower;

· Risks related to compliance and statutory requirements

Risk Strategy

Company recognizes that risk is an integral and unavoidable component of business and is commi�ed to 
managing the risk in a proac�ve and effec�ve manner. The Company believes that the Risk cannot be eliminated 
but it can be be�er managed by

· Transferred to another party, who is willing to take risk, say by buying an insurance policy or entering into 
a forward contract in case of business involving use of Foreign exchange; 

· Reduced, by adop�ng good internal controls; 

· Avoided, by not entering into risky businesses; 

· Retained, to either avoid the cost of trying to reduce risk or in an�cipa�on of higher profits by taking on 
more risk, and; 

· Shared, by following a middle path between retaining and transferring risk. 

Risk Management Framework 

Company adopts systema�c approach to mi�gate risks associated with accomplishment of objec�ves, 
opera�ons, revenues and compliance with the regula�ons. The Company believes that this would ensure 
mi�ga�ng steps proac�vely and help to achieve the risk management effec�vely. 

The Company has cons�tuted a Risk Management Commi�ee of Chief Execu�ve Officer, Chief Opera�ng Officer, 
Chief Financial Officer, Chief Marke�ng Officer and Business Heads as its regular members and other senior 
func�onal heads on invita�on basis.  The Commi�ee is commi�ed to review periodically the various risks 
associated with the Company and report the same to the Board. 

20

KDDL Limited



Focus of the Company is on the three key elements, viz., Risk Assessment / Iden�fica�on, Risk Management and 
Risk Monitoring. 

l Poten�al Risks are iden�fied and analyzed, considering likelihood and its impact, as a basis for 
determining how they should be managed. 

l Risk Assessment consists of a detailed study of threats and vulnerability and resultant exposure to 
various risks. Based on the assessment and iden�fica�on of the risks, the commi�ee decided the 
proac�ve steps for managing and monitoring these risks.

DEPOSITS

The details of deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 is given hereunder:

1. Deposits Accepted/ renewed during the year     :  Rs.  7,37,32,000

2. Deposits outstanding at the end of the year     :  Rs. 15,69,86,000

3. Deposits remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end  of the year  :   NIL

4. Whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits 
 or payment of interest thereon during the year and if so, number:   NIL
 of such cases and the total amount involved

5. The details of deposits which are not in compliance      :   NIL
 with the requirements of Chapter       

STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL WITH REFERENCE TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A strong internal control culture is an important focus and thrust area in the Company. The Company has 
comprehensive internal systems, controls and policies for all the major processes to ensure the reliability of 
financial repor�ng, �mely feedback on achievement of opera�onal and strategic goals, compliance with policies, 
procedures, laws, and regula�ons, safeguarding of assets and economical and efficient use of resources. 

The formalized systems of control facilitate effec�ve compliance as per SEBI(LODR) Regula�ons, 2015. The 
company also has well documented Standard Opera�ng Procedures (SOPs) for various processes which are 
periodically reviewed for changes warranted due to business needs. 

The Internal Auditors of the Company con�nuously monitor the efficacy of internal controls/ compliance with 
SOPs with the objec�ve of providing to the Audit Commi�ee and the Board of Directors, an independent, 
objec�ve and reasonable assurance on the adequacy and effec�veness of the organiza�on's risk management, 
control and governance processes. 

The scope and authority of the Internal Audit ac�vity are well defined in the Internal Audit scope and guidelines, 
approved by the Audit Commi�ee. Internal Auditors develop a risk based annual audit plan with inputs from 
major stake holders, and the major focus areas as per previous audit reports. 

All significant audit observa�ons are reviewed periodically and follow-up ac�ons thereon are reported to the 
Audit Commi�ee. The Audit Commi�ee also meet the Company's Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors to 
ascertain their views on the financial statements, including the financial repor�ng system, compliance to 
accoun�ng policies and procedures, the adequacy and effec�veness of the internal controls and systems 
followed by the Company.

KDDL Limited
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The top and senior management of the company also assesses opportuni�es for improvement in business 
processes, systems and controls, provides recommenda�ons, designed to add value to the organiza�on and 
follows up on the implementa�on of correc�ve ac�ons and improvements in business processes.

The senior management of the company meets periodically to assess the performance of the each business 
segment and key func�ons of the company and areas for improvement of performance / controls are iden�fied 
and reviewed on con�nuous basis.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS

The ESOP scheme is in compliance with SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regula�ons, 2014. The details are 
available on the Company's website: www.kddl.com

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company 

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company is fully commi�ed to uphold and maintain the dignity of women working in the Company. Pursuant 
to the provisions of Sec�on 21 of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on, 
Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company formulated an An�-Sexual Harassment policy. All employees (permanent, 
contractual, temporary and trainees) are covered under this policy. An Internal Complaints Commi�ee (ICC) was 
set up which is responsible for redressal of complaints related to sexual harassment at the workplace. The 
Company has been employing about 329 women employees, both permanent as well as contractual in various 
fields within the factory premises and offices. During the year under review, the Company has not received any 

stcomplaint pertaining to sexual harassment and hence no complaint is outstanding as on 31  March, 2019.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

A detailed Report on Management Discussion and Analysis, pursuant to SEBI(LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 is annexed 
to this report as Annexure- VII.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A Report on Corporate Governance Report pursuant to SEBI(LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 is annexed to this report as 
Annexure-VIII.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) POLICY

The Company is commi�ed to discharge its social responsibility as a good corporate ci�zen. As part of its social 
responsibility, the Company has contributed to KDDL-Ethos founda�on and the projects are undertaken by the 
trust formed for the same purpose. These projects have been undertaken in compliance with the provision of the 
Sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII and rules made there under and in accordance 
with Company's CSR Policy. The Report on CSR required under the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) Rules, 2014 is set out as Annexure-IX forming part of this report.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

In accordance with the provisions of regula�on 34(2)  of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015,  the Cash Flow Statement 
st for the year ended on 31  March, 2019 forms an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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LISTING OF SHARES 

Your Company's shares are listed at BSE Limited and Na�onal Stock Exchange of India Limited and the lis�ng fees 
for the year 2018-19 has been duly paid.

PERSONNEL  

Your Directors place on record their apprecia�on for the significant contribu�on made by all the employees, who 
through their competence, hard work, solidarity and co-opera�on, have enabled the Company to perform be�er. 

TRADE RELATIONS

The Board wishes to place on record its apprecia�on for the support and co-opera�on that the Company received 
from its suppliers, distributors, retailers and other associates. The Company has always looked upon them as 
partners in its progress and has happily shared with them rewards of growth. It will be Company's endeavor to 
build and nurture strong links based on mutuality, respect and co-opera�on with each other and consistent with 
customer interest.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank all the investors, clients, vendors, banks, regulatory and government 
authori�es, for their con�nued support.

thDate :  14  August, 2019       For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Chandigarh

  Yashovardhan Saboo
 Chairman & Managing Director
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Name of Associates
Kamla Tesio Dials 

Limited

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date
3/31/2019

2. Shares of Associate/ Joint Ventures held by the company 

on the year end

Number  3 lakhs

Amount of Investment in Associates/ Joint Ventures

30%Extent of Holdings %

3. Descrip�on of how there is significant influence
Associate

4. Reason why the associate/ joint venture is not 

consolidated
N.A.

5. Networth a�ributable to Shareholding as per latest 

audited Balance Sheet
Rs. 27.51 Lakhs

                         6. Profit/ Loss for the Year

                            i. Considered in Consolida�on

                              
ii. Not Considered in Consolida�on

Part "B": Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Sec�on 129(3) of the Companies At, 2013 related to Associate 
Companies And Joint Ventures

KDDL Limited

25

Rs. (0.71) Lakhs

Rs. (0.21) Lakhs

Rs. (0.50) Lakhs

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of KDDL Limited

Yashovardhan Saboo    Sanjeev Masown  Brahm Prakash Kumar
Chairman & Managing Director   Whole �me Director cum  Company Secretary
      Chief Financial Officer

DIN: 00012158     DIN: 03542390   F 7519

Rs. 30 lakhs
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I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN�:- L33302HP1981PLC008123
thii) Registra�on Date :- 8  January, 1981

iii) Name of the Company :- KDDL Limited 

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company : - Public Company(Limited by Shares)

v) Address of the Registered office and contact details :-

 Plot no. 3, Sector III, Parwanoo 173 220 (Himachal Pradesh)
 Telephone no.: 01792-232462/233402
 Fax no.: 01792-232619

vi) Whether listed company :- Yes

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any:-  
 Karvy Computershare Private Limited, Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Financial District, 

Nanakramguda, Gachibowli, Hyderabad – 500 032
 Phone No: 040-67161516/1518, Fax: 040-23420818 Website: www.karvy.com 

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business ac�vi�es contribu�ng 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31�� March, 2019
[Pursuant to sec�on 92(3) and rule 12(1) of theof the Companies Act, 2013 

Companies (Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014]
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1 Watch Dials & watch hands 26521 73.88
2. Components & Press tools 26101 & 225933 22.05

Sl.  
No.  

Name and address of the 
Company  

CIN/GLN  Holding/Subsidiary/
Associate  

% of 
shares 
held  

Applicable
sec�on 

 
1

   
Mahen Distribu�on Limited 

 
U93000CH2009PLC031625

 
Subsidiary Company

 
98.72

 
2(87)(ii)

2

   

Ethos Limited 

 

U52300HP2007PLC030800

 

Subsidiary Company

 

72.89

 

2(87)(ii)

3

   

Pylania SA

 

--

 

Subsidiary Company

 

85.00

 

2(87)(ii)

4

   

Kamla Interna�onal Holding SA

 

--

 

Wholly Owned Subsidiary

 

100.00

 

2(87)(ii)

5

   

Satva Jewellery and Design 
Limited 

 

U36911CH2004PLC027767

 

Wholly owned Subsidiary

 

100.00

 

(2)(6)

6

   

Kamla Tesio Dials Limited 

 

U33309CH1996PLC018732

 

Associate Company

 

30.00

 

(2)(6)

7 Es�ma AG - Subsidiary Company 100.00 2(87)(ii)

Annexure-III
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IV.   SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i)     Category-wise Share Holding

  

  

CATE
GORY 
CODE

 CATEGORY OF 
SHAREHOLDER

 

NO. OF SHARES HELD AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 
YEAR 01/04/2018

 NO. OF SHARES HELD AT THE END OF THE YEAR 
31/03/2019

 

DEMAT
 

PHYSICAL
 

TOTAL
 

% OF 
TOTAL 
SHARES

 
DEMAT

 
PHYSICAL 

 
TOTAL 

 

% OF 
TOTAL 
SHARES

 

   
(I)   

    
(II)   

    
(III)   

    
(IV)   

    
(V)   

    
(VI)   

    
(VII)   

    
(VIII)   

    
(IX)

   
(X)

 

(A)
 PROMOTER AND PROMOTER 

GROUP
                 

(1)
 

INDIAN
                 

(a)
 

Individual /HUF
 

4882893
 

0
 

4882893
 

44.58
 

4892866
 

0
 

4892866
 

42.06
 

(b)
 

Central Government/State 
Government(s)

 
0
 

0
 

0
 

0.00
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

(c)
 

Bodies Corporate 
 

31404
 

0
 

31404
 

0.29
 

32406
 

0
 

32406
 

0
 

(d)
 

Financial Institu�ons / Banks
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0.00
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

(e)
 

Others
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0.00
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

                

          
Sub-Total A(1)  :

 
4914297

 
0
 

4914297
 

44.87
 

4925272
 

0
 

4925272
 

42.34
 

                

(2) FOREIGN             

(a) 
Individuals (NRIs/Foreign 
Individuals) 0 0 0  0.00      

(b) Bodies Corporate 60000 0 60000 0.55  324150  0  324150  2.79  

(c) Ins�tu�ons   0 0 0  0.00  0  0  0  0  

(d) Qualified Foreign Investor 0 0 0  0.00  0  0  0  0  

(e) Others   0 0 0  0  0  0  0  0  

          Sub-Total A(2)  : 60000 0 60000 0.55  324150  0  324150  2.79  

          Total A=A(1)+A(2) 4974297 0 4974297 45.42  5249422  0  5249422  45.12  

                

(B) PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING             

(1) INSTITUTIONS             

(a) Mutual Funds /UTI   2900 
 

2900 0.03  0  2900  2900  0.02  

(b) Financial Ins�tu�ons /Banks 0 50 50  0.00   50  50  0.00  

(c) 

Central Government / State 
Government(s) 0 0 0  0.00      

(d) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0  0.00      
(e) Insurance Companies   0 0 0  0.00      

(f) 

Foreign Ins�tu�onal Investors  
and Foreign Por�olio 
Investors 1787305 0 1787305 16.32  3064798  0  3064798  26.34  

(g) 

Foreign Venture Capital 
Investors  0 0 0  0.00      

(h) Qualified Foreign Investor 0 0 0  0.00      

(i)
 

Others  ( Alterna�ve 
Investment Fund)

 
74580

 
0
 

74580
 

0.68
 

303903
 

0
 

303903
 

2.61
 

Sub-Total B(1)  : 1866785 50 1864835 17.02 3368701 2950 3371651
    

(2)
 

NON-INSTITUTIONS
             

(a)
 

Bodies Corporate
 

1315455
 

75771
 

1391226
 

12.70
 

299708
 

36668
 

336376
 

1.43
 

(b)
 

Individuals
             

  

(i) Individuals holding 
nominal share capital upto 
Rs.2 lakh

 

  
1526746

 
285610

 
1812356

       
16.55

 
1536338

 
255236

 
1791574

 
15.40

 

(ii) Individuals holding 
nominal share capital in 
excess of Rs.2 lakh

    
740337

 
0
 

740337
         

6.76
 

769649
 

0
 

769649
 

6.62
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(c) Others             

  CLEARING MEMBERS                                  475 0 475 0.00  5537  0  5537  0.05  

  FOREIGN BODIES                                    40000 0 40000 0.37  0  0  0  0  

  NBFC                                               2389 0 2389 0.02  2500  0  2500  0.02  

  NON RESIDENT INDIANS               86770 50 86820 0.79  80504  50  80554  0.69  

  NRI  NON-REPATRIATION                             39477 0 39477 0.36  26345  0  26345  0.23  

(d) Qualified Foreign Investor 0 0 0  0.00  0  0  0  0  

                

          Sub-Total B(2) : 3751649 361431 4113660 37.56  2720581  291954  3012535  25.90  

                

          Total B=B(1)+B(2)  : 5618434 361481 5978495 54.58  6089282  294904  6364186  54.88  

                

          Total (A+B)   : 10592731 361481 10952792 100.00  11338704  294904  11633608  100  

                

(C) 

Shares held by custodians, 
against which   0 0 0 0  0  0  0  0  

  

Depository Receipts have 
been issued  0 0 0 0  0  0  0  0  

                

(1) 

Promoter and Promoter 
Group  0 0 0 0  0  0  0  0  

(2) Public 00 0 0 0  0  0  0  0  

                

          GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C) : 10592731 361481 10952792 100.00  11338704  294904  11633608   

 
ii)  S hareholding of Promoters 

Sl. 
No. 

 Shareholder's Name 

 

Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year 

 Shareholding at the end of the year 

 

%age 
change in 
shareholdi
ng during 
the year 

 
No. of 
shares 

 % of total 
shares of 
the 
Company 

 

% of 
shares 
pledged/e
ncumbere
d to total 
shares 

 

No. of 
shares 

 % of total 
shares of 
the 
Company 

 

% of 
shares 
pledged/e
ncumbere
d to total 
shares 

 

1
 

R.K. Saboo (HUF)
 

69,820
 

0.64
  

69,820
 

0.60
  

-0.18
 

2
 

R.K. Saboo (HUF)
 

30,800
 

0.28
  

30,800
 

0.26
  

-0.02
 

3
 

Yashovardhan Saboo 
(HUF) 

48752
 

0.45
  

48752
 

0.42
  

-0.03
 

4 R.K. Saboo 19,57,840 17.88  18,48,340  15.89   -1.99  

5 Yashovardhan Saboo 14,98,513 13.68 24.02  15,08,513  12.97   -0.71  

6 Usha Devi Saboo 4,51,180 4.12  4,51,180  3.88   -0.24  

7
 

Anuradha Saboo
 

4,36,857
 

3.99
  

4,36,857
 

3.76
              

-0.23
 

8
 

Pranav Shankar Saboo
 

2,22,451
 

2.03
  

3,31,951
 

2.85
  

-0.82
 
 9

 
Satvika Saboo

 
1,35,755

 
1.24

  
1,35,728

 
1.17

  
-0.07

 
10

 
Asha Devi Saboo

 
30,925

 
0.28

  
30,925

 
0.27

  
-0.01

 11

 
Vardhan Proper�es & 
Investment Limited 

9001

 
0.08

  
9,001

 
0.08

  
0
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 12

 

Dream Digital 
Technology Limited 

 

22403

 

0.20

  

23,405

 

0.20

  

0

 
13

 

Swades Capital LLC

 

60000

 

0.55

  

3,24,150

 

2.79

  

2.24

 Total 49,74,297 45.42 52,49,422 45.12

iii)    Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

 

 

 

Sr. 
No

Shareholder Name Shareholding at the beginning Cumula�ve Shareholding during 
the year

No. of Shares % of share 
capital

No. of Shares % of share 
capital

1

 

R.K. Saboo (HUF)

  

 

At the beginning of the year

 

69,820

 

0.64

 

69,820

 

0.64

 

 

Increase/Decrease

 

No Change

 

 

At the end of the year

   

69,820

 

0.60

 

2

 

R.K. Saboo (HUF)

  

 

At the beginning of the year

   

30,800

 

0.28

 

30,800

 

0.28

 

 

Increase/Decrease

 

No Change

 

 

At the end of the year

   

30,800

 

0.26

 

3

 

Yashovardhan Saboo (HUF)

  

 

At the beginning of the year

 

48752

 

0.45

 

48752

 

0.45

 

 

Increase/Decrease

 

No Change

 

 

At the end of the year

   

48752

 

0.42

 

4

 

R.K. Saboo

  

 

At the beginning of the year

 

19,57,840

 

17.88

 

19,57,840

 

17.88

 

 

Increase/Decrease 
(12/06/12018)

 (1,09,500)

 

1.00

 

18,48,340

 

16.88

 

 
At the end of the year

   
18,48,340

 
15.89

 

5
 

Yashovardhan Saboo
  

 
At the beginning of the year

 
14,98,513

 
13.68

 
14,98,513

 
13.68

 

 Increase/Decrease  

08-10-2018 
10-10-2018 

 

2925 
7075 

 

0.025  

0.06  

 

15,08,513  

 

12.97  

 At the end of the year   15,08,513  12.97  
6

 
Usha Devi Saboo

  

 
At the beginning of the year

 
4,51,180

 
4.12

 
4,51,180

 
4.12

 

 
Increase/Decrease

 
No Change

 

 

At the end of the year

   

4,51,180

 

3.88

 7

 

Anuradha Saboo

  

 

At the beginning of the year

 

4,36,857

 

3.99

 

4,36,857

 

3.99

 

 

Increase/Decrease

 

No Change

 

 

At the end of the year

   

4,36,857

 

3.76

 

8

 

Pranav Shankar Saboo

     

 

At the beginning of the year

 

2,22,451

 

2.03

 

2,22,451

 

2.03

 

 

Increase/Decrease

 

(12/06/12018)

 

1,09,500

 

1.00

 

3,31,951

 

3.03

 

 

At the end of the year

   

3,31,951

 

2.85

 

9

 

Satvika Saboo

At the beginning of the year 1,35,755 1.24

Increase/Decrease (27) 0.00 1,35,728 1.17

At the end of the year 1,35,728 1.17



     

     

     

     

10 Asha Devi Saboo

     

At the beginning of the year 30,925 0.28 30,925 0.28

Increase/Decrease No Change

At the end of the year 30,925 0.27

11 Vardhan Proper�es & 

KDDL Limited

37

11

 
Vardhan Proper�es & 
Investment Limited 

 
    

 
At the beginning of the year

 
9001

 
0.08

 
9001

 
0.08

 

 Increase/Decrease No Change  

 At the end of the year   9001  0.08  

12 Dream Digital Technology 
Limited  

    

 
At the beginning of the year

 
22,403

 
0.20

 
22,403

 
0.20

 

 
Increase/Decrease                   
(23-10-2018)

 

1002
 

0.00
 

23,405
 

0.20
 

 

At the end of the year

   

23,405

 

0.20

 13

 

Swades Capital LLC

     

 

At the beginning of the year

 

60,000

 

0.55

 

60,000

 

0.55

 

 

Increase/Decrease                  
(15-06-2018)

264150

 

2.41

 

324150

 

2.89

 At the end of the year 324150 2.79

iv) Shareholding Pa�ern of top ten  Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs 
and ADRs):

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the Year

Cumula�ve 
Shareholding during 
the Year 

Sl. no. Name of the Share Holder No of 
Shares

% of total 
shares of the 
company

 

Date Increase/Decrease 
in share holding

Reason No of 
Shares

% of 
total 
shares of
the 
company

1 SAIF INDIA V FII HOLDINGS LIMITED                                          1008400

 

9.21

 

31/03/2018

     

1008400

 

9.21

    

30/03/2019

     

1008400

 

8.67

2 SAIF PARTNERS INDIA V LIMITED                                              754716

 

6.89

 

31/03/2018

     

754716

 

6.89

    

30/03/2019

     

754716

 

6.49

3 ASHA MUKUL AGRAWAL                                                         425000

 

3.88

 

31/03/2018

     

425000

 

3.88

    

30/03/2019

     

425000

 

3.65

4 KITARA INDIA MICRO CAP GROWTH FUND                                         374680

 

3.42

 

31/03/2018

     

374680

 

3.42
    

15/02/2019

 

-5000

 

Transfer

 

369680

 

3.18
    

01/03/2019

 

-5000

 

Transfer

 

364680

 

3.13
    

15/03/2019

 

-12730

 

Transfer

 

351950

 

3.03    

30/03/2019

     

351950

 

3.03

5 NATIONAL WESTMINSTER BANK PLC AS 
TRUSTEE OF THE JU                         

 0

 

0.00

 

31/03/2018

     

0

 

0.00    

20/07/2018

 

198719

 

Transfer

 

198719

 

1.77    
16/11/2018

 
3298

 
Transfer

 
202017

 
1.80    

23/11/2018
 

6
 

Transfer
 

202023
 

1.80
    

07/12/2018
 

113141
 

Transfer
 

315164
 

2.81
    30/03/2019      315164  2.71

6 ALCHEMY LEADERS OF TOMORROW                                                0 0.00 31/03/2018      0  0.00

    28/09/2018  6268  Transfer  6268  0.06

    05/10/2018  28806  Transfer  35074  0.31

    12/10/2018  170  Transfer  35244  0.31

    
28/12/2018

 
229166

 
Transfer

 
264410

 
2.27

    
01/02/2019

 
580

 
Transfer

 
264990

 
2.28

    
29/03/2019

 
3060

 
Transfer

 
268050

 
2.30

30/03/2019 268050 2.30
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          7 PARAM CAPITAL RESEARCH PRIVATE 
LIMITED                                     

 

211536

 

1.93

 

31/03/2018

     

211536

 

1.93

    

20/07/2018

 

-51227

 

Transfer

 

160309

 

1.43

    

30/11/2018

 

-100000

 

Transfer

 

60309

 

0.54

    

30/03/2019

     

60309

 

0.52

8 UNIVERSAL GOLDEN FUND                                                      170120

 

1.55

 

31/03/2018

     

170120

 

1.55

    

08/06/2018

 

5000

 

Transfer

 

175120

 

1.62

    

30/03/2019

     

175120

 

1.51

9 PARTNER REINSURANCE EUROPE SE-
ALCHEMY CAPITAL                              

 

119476

 

1.09

 

31/03/2018

     

119476

 

1.09

    

06/04/2018

 

1583

 

Transfer

 

121059

 

1.12

    

28/12/2018

 

187500

 

Transfer

 

308559

 

2.65

    

30/03/2019

     

308559

 

2.65

10 NALINI NAROTAM SEKHSARIA    

                                               

97000

 

0.89

 

31/03/2018

     

97000

 

0.89

    

30/03/2019

     

97000

 

0.83

11 ANANTROOP FINANCIAL ADVISORY 
SERVICES PRIVATE LIMI                         

 

84000

 

0.77

 

31/03/2018

     

84000

 

0.77

    

27/04/2018

 

-4000

 

Transfer

 

80000

 

0.74

    

30/03/2019

     

80000

 

0.69

12 SANKARANARAYANAN SANGAMESWARAN                                             73684 0.67 31/03/2018 73684 0.67

20/07/2018 632 Transfer 74316 0.66

17/08/2018 7280 Transfer 81596 0.73

30/03/2019 81596 0.70

13  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

SBI PIPE FUND -  1                                                           

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

74580  0.68  31/03/2018      74580 0.68

    06/04/2018  -2580  Transfer  72000 0.66

    
20/04/2018

 
-2000

 
Transfer

 
70000 0.65

    
27/04/2018

 
-2925

 
Transfer

 
67075 0.62

    
15/06/2018

 
-8075

 
Transfer

 
59000 0.54

    

22/06/2018

 

-4000

 

Transfer

 

55000 0.49

    

13/07/2018

 

-5000

 

Transfer

 

50000 0.45

    

27/07/2018

 

-1672

 

Transfer

 

48328 0.43

    

10/08/2018

 

-1577

 

Transfer

 

46751 0.42

    

07/09/2018

 

-80

 

Transfer

 

46671 0.42

    

12/10/2018

 

-1000

 

Transfer

 

45671 0.41

    

23/11/2018

 

-45671

 

Transfer

 

0 0.00

    

30/03/2019

     

0 0.00

 

Sl.No. 
 

For each of the Directors and Key 
Managerial Personnel

 Shareholding 
 

Cumula�ve shareholding during 
the year 

 

No. of shares 
 

% of total 
shares of the 
company  

No. of shares 
 

% of total 
shares of the 
company 

  At the beginning of the year          

A  Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo 
(Individually and through HUF)  

1547265  14.13  1547265  14.13

B  Mr. Anil Khanna  4283  0.04  4283  0.04

C  Mr.Jagesh Khaitan  466  0.00  466 0.00

D  Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Masown  2000  0.02  2000  0.02

E  Mr. Sanjiv Sachar  1400  0.01  1400  0.01

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Promoter shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc.)

 
: Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo purchased 10,000 

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each from 8
th

 
October, 2018 to 10

th

 
October, 2018. Mr. Anil Khanna sold 2183 Shares 

between 9
th

 
April, 2018 to 27

th
April, 2018.

  



 

    

  

At the end of the year 

       

A

 

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo 
(Individually and through HUF)

 

1557265

 

13.39

 

1557265

 

13.39

B

 

Mr. Anil Khanna 

 

2100

 

0.01

 

2100

 

0.01

C

 

Mr.Jagesh Khaitan 

 

466

 

0.00

 

466

 

0.00

D

 

Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Masown

 

1956

                   

0.02

 

1956

 

0.02

E

 

Mr. Sanjiv Sachar

 

1400

 

0.01

 

1400

 

0.01

V.  INDEBTEDNESS
 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Par�culars

 

Secured Loans

 

Deposits

 

Total Indebtedness

  
 

Indebtedness as at the beginning of the 
Financial Year 1.4.2018

       

1

 

Principal Amount

 

521,904,400

      

659,768,400

  

2

 

Interest Due but not paid

                                   

-

                            

-

                                  

-

3

 

Interest accrued but not due

 

2,045,071               

  

17,457,858

 

  

Total of (1+2+3)

 

,523,949 471

    

677,226,258

 

Change

 

in indebtedness during the 
financial year 

     

  

Addi�on

 

111,262,309

  

184,366,309 

 

  

Reduc�on

 

221,562,000

   

275,544,000 

 

  

Net Change

  

(110,299,691)

   

(91,177,691)

 

Indebtedness as at the end

 

of

 

the 
Financial Year 31.3.2019

     

1

 

Principal Amount

  

411,604,709 

 
 

  
 

 

568,590,709 

 
 

2

 

Interest Due but not paid

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

3

 

Interest accrued but not due

  

1,731,489 

    

17,097,378 

 

  

Total of (1+2+3)

  

413,336,198 

   

137,864,000 

15,412,787

153,276,787 

73,104,000

53,982,000 

19,122,000 

156,986,000 

15,365,889 

172,351,889 

 

585,688,087 

 

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
 A. Remunera�on to Managing Director, Whole-�me Directors and/or Manager:

Sl. 
No. 

 

Par�culars of the Remunera�on 

 

Name of MD/WTD/Manager

 

Mr. Yashova rdhan 
Saboo 

 

Mr. Sanjeev Kumar 
Masown

 

Total Amount in 

 

(₹)

1.

 

Gross Salary 

    

(a)

 

Salary as per provisions contained in sec�on 17(1) 
of the Income-tax Act, 1961

 

15,945,181 

                 

8,228,094 

 
 

           

24,173,275 

 
 

(b)

 

Value of perquisites u/s (17(2) of Income Tax Act, 
1961

 
                     

322,500 

 
                    

39,600 

 
 

               

362,100 

 
 

(c)

 

Profits in lieu of salary under sec�on 17(3) 
Income-tax of Income

 

Tax Act, 1961

 
   

2

 

Stock Op�on 

    

3

 

Sweat Equity 

    

4

 

Commission  

    

(a)

 

as % of profit

    

(b)

 

Others, specify

    

5 Others, please specify 

Total (A) 
16,267,681 8,267,694 24,535,375 

Overall Ceilings As per Act As per Act As per Act
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B.    Remunera�on to Other Directors:

Sl. No. 

 
Par�culars of the 
Remunera�on 

 

Name of Directors

 
Total 
Amount

  
Mr. 
J.V.Saboo

 
Mr. Sanjiv 
Sachar 

 
Mr. Anil 
Khanna

 
Mr. Jagesh 
Khaitan

 
Mrs. 
Ranjana 
Agarwal 

 
Mr. 
Praveen 
Gupta 

 
Mr. 
Torsten 
Buchwald

  

1 Independent Directors

            
 

 

Fees for a�ending 
board/commi�ee mee�ngs

 
 

1,90,000

 
3,00,000

  
2,45,000

 
2,10,000

 
40,000

 
9,85,000

Commission
        

Others, please specify
        

Total (1) -- 1,90,000 3,00,000  -  2,45,000  2,10,000  40,000  9,85,000

2 Other Non Execu�ve 
Directors 

       

Fees for a�ending 
board/commi�ee mee�ngs 

45,000   1,65,000     2,10,000

Commission
 

-
       

Others, please specify
 

-
       

Total (2)

 
45,000

 
-

 
-

 
1,65,000

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
2,10,000

Total (B) = 1 + 2

 

45,000

 

1,90,000

 

3,00,000

 

1,65,000

 

2,45,000

 

2,10,000

 

40,000

 

11,95,000

Total Managerial 
Remunera�on 

 

45,000

 

1,90,000

 

3,00,000

 

1,65,000

 

2,45,000

 

2,10,000

 

40,000

 

11,95,000

   

      
 Overall Ceilings as per Act

As per 
Act As per Act As per Act As per Act As per Act

As per 
Act As per Act

C.   REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl. No.  Par�culars of the Remunera�on  Key Managerial Personnel    

    Company Secretary  WTD-CUM-CFO  Total  
1  Gross Salary  

 
    

  

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in sec�on 
17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

 

  
1,704,999 

 
 

 
8,228,094 

 
 

9,933,093
 

  

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income Tax Act, 
1961

 

nil
  

39,600 
 

 
    

39,600
 

  

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under sec�on17(3) 
Income-tax Act, 1961

 

Nil

 

Nil

 
 

Nil

 

2

 

Stock Op�on 

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

Nil

 3

 

Sweat Equity 

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

Nil

 4

 

Commission 

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

 

a) as % of profit

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

 

b) Others, specify

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

Nil

 
5

 

Others, please specify

  

Nil

 

Nil

 

Nil

 
Total 1,704,999

  

8,267,694 

 

9,972,693
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VII.     PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: (NOT APPLICABLE)

Type  Sec�on of the 
Companies Act  

Brief 
Descrip�on  

Details of 
penalty/punishment/
compounding fees 
imposed  

Authority 
{RD/NCLT/
Court}  

Appeal 
made, if any 
(give details  

A.  COMPANY  
Penalty    --NIL--    
Punishment       
Compounding       

      
B.  DIRECTORS  

Penalty    --nil--    
Punishment       
Compounding       

      
C.

 
OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

 
Penalty 

   
--nil--

   
Punishment 

      
Compounding 
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Annexure-IV

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 134(3)(M) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH THE 
COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY :

 a) Steps taken for conserva�on: The Company con�nues to give high priority to conserva�on of energy 
on an on-going basis.  A few significant measures taken are:

 i) Periodical and preven�ve maintenance of electric equipments and ensured op�mum u�liza�on of 
electric energy.

 ii) Phased balancing of hea�ng and ligh�ng load.

 iii) Increase in power factor by installing capacitor at the individual machines.

 b) Steps taken for u�lizing alternate sources of energy :-
Cost of power is negligible in total cost of produc�on.

 c) Capital investment on energy conserva�on equipments:-  

  Further energy conserva�on is planned through replacement of and modifica�on of inefficient 
equipments and by providing automa�c controls to reduce idle running of equipments.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

 Efforts made for technology absorp�on

 1.   Research and Development (R & D):

 a)  Specific areas on which R & D carried on by the Company: Research and Development has been carried 
out for quality improvement, new product developments and produc�vity improvement.  

 b)  Benefits derived as a result of the above R & D: Increase in overall efficiency, produc�vity and quality of 
outgoing product and a wider range of watch components along with incremental business from 
customers

 c)  Future plan of ac�on: Further improvement in produc�on processes, to develop new dial finishes, new 
types of index, development of tools and components and reduc�on of costs would con�nue.

 d)  Expenditure on R&D: No separate account is being maintained by the company for the expenditure 
incurred on R&D.  However, the Company is incurring recurring expenditure towards development 
ac�vi�es.

 2.   Technology Absorp�on, Adapta�on & Innova�on :

  Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorp�on, adapta�on and innova�on: The Company is 
constantly engaged in in-house R & D and is in constant touch with the new technologies.

  Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts: Due to con�nuous developmental efforts, the 
Company has been able to produce much more complicated dials which were being imported un�l 
now.  

3. i)       Technology imported: None a�er 1995.

 ii)      Year of Import: N.A. 

 iii)     Has technology been fully absorbed? : Yes. 

 iv)     If not absorbed, area where this has not taken place, reasons thereof and future plans of ac�on: N.A.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO       (Rupees in Millions)
          2018-19
Foreign Exchange earnings       904.83
Foreign Exchange outgo       299.87
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Annexure-V

(A)    Par�culars of Employees

Par�culars of Employees Pursuant to Sec�on 134(3)(q) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the 
Companies (appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

S.No.

 

Requirements of Rule 5(1)

 

Details

 

(i)

 

The ra�o of the remunera�on of each 
director to the median remunera�on of the 
employees of the company for the financial 
year
 

 

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo

 

53.1:1

 

Mr. Sanjeev Masown

 
27.0:1

 

  

(ii) The percentage of increase in remunera�on 
of each director, Chief Financial Officer, 
Chief Execu�ve Officer, Company Secretary 
or Manager, if any, in the Financial year;

 

 

Name
 

As per 
Payout

 As per 
Terms

 

Mr. Yashovardhan 
Saboo

 
31.2%

 
6.0%

 

Mr. Sanjeev Masown
 

28.7%
 

40.2%
 

 

The difference in Terms of appointment and actual payout 
is due to variable component, which is linked to 
performance of individual and company against the 
agreed parameter.  

(iii) The percentage increase in the median 
remunera�on of employees in the financial 
year; 

16.7%  

(iv) The number of permanent employees on 
the rolls of company;

 

1130  employee as on 31st

 March, 2019  

(v) Average percen�le increase already made in 
the salaries of employees other than the 
managerial personnel in the last financial 
year and its comparison with t he percen�le 
increase in th e managerial remunera�on 
and jus�fica�on thereof and point out if 
there are any excep�onal circumstances for 
increase in the managerial remunera�on;

 

Average Salary increase of non-managerial employees is 
13.8%

 
 Average salary increase

 
of managerial employees is 14.4%

 
 There are no excep�onal circumstances in increase in 
managerial remunera�on.

 
(vi) Affirma�on that the remunera�on is as per 

the remunera�on policy of the company.

 

Remunera�on paid during the year is as per the

 Remunera�on Policy of the Company.
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Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

[Pursuant to Sec�on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

KDDL Limited

Plot No. III, Sector 3

Parwanoo, Himachal Pradesh

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate prac�ces by KDDL LIMITED (hereina�er called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted 
in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evalua�ng the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 
and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verifica�on of the KDDL LIMITED'S books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the company and also the informa�on provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representa�ves during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the 
company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2019 complied with the 
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processesand compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the repor�ng made hereina�er.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by KDDL 
LIMITED (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on March 31, 2019accordingto the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securi�es Contracts (Regula�on) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regula�ons and Bye-lawsframed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regula�ons made thereunder to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regula�ons and Guidelines prescribed under the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 ('SEBI Act'):

 a) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Substan�al Acquisi�on of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regula�ons, 2011 and The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Substan�al Acquisi�on of Shares 
and Takeovers) (Amendment) Regula�ons, 2013.

 b) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Prohibi�on of Insider Trading) Regula�ons, 2015;

 c) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Delis�ng of Equity Shares) Regula�ons, 2009 and the 
amendments thereof: Not Applicable, as none of the securi�es of the company were delisted during 
the audit period.

 d) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 
2009.
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 e) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regula�ons 2014- Not 
Applicable as the company has not provided any share based benefits to the employees during the year.

 f) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Lis�ng of Debt Securi�es) Regula�ons, 2008and 
Chapter V of Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015- Not applicable as the company has not issued any debt securi�es during the 
financial year under review.

 g) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regula�ons, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client- Not applicable as the company 
is not registered as Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agent during the financial year under 
review.

 h) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securi�es) Regula�ons, 1998- Not applicable as 
the company has not bought back any of its securi�es during the financial year under review.

 (vi) The major provisions and requirements have also been complied with as prescribed under all 
applicable Labour laws viz. The Factories Act, 1948, The Payment of Wages Act, 1936, The Payment of 
Bonus Act, 1965, Industrial Dispute Act, 1947, Employee State Insurance Act, 1948, The Employee's 
Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

 (vii) Hazardous Waste (Management and Handling) Rules, 1989 and the Amendments Rules, 2003.

 (viii) The Air(Preven�on and Control of Pollu�on) Act, 1981

 (ix) The Water (Preven�on and Control of Pollu�on) Act, 1974

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses o�he following:

 a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India.

 b) The SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons & Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 being listed on the Na�onal 
Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited.

  During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the act, rules, 
regula�ons, guidelines, standards, etc. men�oned above.

  Based on my examina�on and the informa�on received and records maintained, I further report that:

 1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly cons�tuted withproper balance of Execu�ve Directors, 
Non-Execu�ve Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composi�on of the Board of 
Directors that took place during the year under review were in compliance with the provisions of the 
Act. 

 2. Adequate no�ce is given to all directors to schedule the Board Mee�ngs, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent well in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further informa�on 
and clarifica�ons on the agendaitems before the mee�ng and for meaningful par�cipa�on at the 
mee�ng.

 3. All decision is carried through majority while the dissen�ng members' views, if any, are captured and 
recorded as part of the minutes.

 4. The company has proper board processes.

  Based on the compliance mechanism established by the company and on the basis of the compliance 
cer�ficate(s) issued by the Company Secretary/ Officers, I am of an opinion that there are adequate 
systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and opera�ons of the company to 
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regula�ons and guidelines.
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I further report that during the audit period:

 1. Approval of the members was sought in the 38th Annual General Mee�ng of the company held on 
14.07.2018 for:

  a. Borrowing by way of invi�ng and accep�ng unsecured fixed deposits from shareholders of the 
company, by way of ordinary resolu�on.

  b. Increasing the aggregate limit for investment by the Foreign Por�olio Investors (FPIs) and 
Foreign Ins�tu�onal Investors (FIIs) from 24% to 49% of the paid up share capital of the company 
by way of Special resolu�on.

  c. To increase the overall limits of investments/ giving loan/ guarantees or providing securi�es in 
terms of Sec�on 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 upto an amount of Rs. 500.00 Crores, by way of 
a special resolu�on.

 d. Further issue of securi�es of the company for an aggregate amount upto Rs. 30.00 Crores by way of 
Qualified Ins�tu�onal Placement or Preferen�al Issue of shares or any other mode, by way of a special 
resolu�on.

 e. Approval for the changes in the share capital of M/s Ethos Limited, a material subsidiary of the 
company, by way of a special resolu�on.  

 f. Approval of the material related party transac�ons with M/s Ethos Limited, a material subsidiary 
company to be carried out during the financial year 2018-19 upto an amount of Rs. 100.00 Crores, by 
way of a special resolu�on.

2. The company has allo�ed :

 a. 2,64,150 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each, at a price of Rs. 265/- per share on 15.06.2018, to a promoter 
group en�ty, upon conversion of Zero Coupon Conver�ble Warrants held by it.

 b. 4,16,666 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each, at a price of Rs. 480/- per share on 08.10.2018, to 2 (two) 
allo�ees on preferen�al Issue basis.

 Apart from the business stated above, there were no instances of: 

(i) Redemp�on / buy-back of securi�es.

(ii) Major decisions taken by the Members in pursuance to Sec�on 180 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iii)  Foreign technical collabora�ons.

Place: Chandigarh         
thDate : 28  May, 2019

            For A. ARORA & CO
 

            AJAY K. ARORA 
            (Proprietor)
            FCS No. 2191
            C P No.: 993
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“Annexure-A”

To,

The Members,
KDDL Limited
Plot No. III, Sector 3
Parwanoo, Himachal Pradesh

My report of even date is to be read along with this le�er.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company. My 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit prac�ces and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of secretarial records. The verifica�on was done on test basis to 
ensure that the correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and 
prac�ces, I followed, provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the 
company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the management representa�on about the compliance of laws, 
rules and regula�ons and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regula�ons, standards is 
the responsibility of the management. Our examina�on was limited to the extent of verifica�on of 
procedures on test basis.

6. The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the 
efficacy or effec�veness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Place: Chandigarh           For A. ARORA & CO       
thDate : 28  May, 2019

           
 

                     AJAY K. ARORA 
             (Proprietor)

            FCS No. 2191
             C P No.: 993
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

AN OVERVIEW OF THE ECONOMY

Global Economy

Global growth is expected to remain at 3.0 per cent in 2019 and 2020, however, the steady pace of expansion in 

the global economy masks an increase in downside risks that could poten�ally exacerbate development 

challenges in many parts of the world. The global economy is facing a confluence of risks, which could severely 

disrupt economic ac�vity and inflict significant damage on longer-term development prospects. These risks 

include an escala�on of trade disputes, an abrupt �ghtening of global financial condi�ons, and intensifying 

climate risks. In many developed countries, growth rates have risen close to their poten�al, while unemployment 

rates have dropped to historical lows. Among the developing economies, the East and South Asia regions remain 

on a rela�vely strong growth trajectory, amid robust domes�c demand condi�ons. 

The Interna�onal Monetary Fund (IMF) cut its global growth forecast to the lowest level since the financial crisis, 

warning of significant downside risks to the world economy including trade tensions, pockets of poli�cal 

instability, moun�ng debt levels and increasing inequality. The IMF lowered its growth forecast for 2019 to 3.3 

percent from the previous level of 3.5 percent in its latest World Economic Outlook (WEO). 

Despite the lowered forecast for 2019, the IMF expects the global economy to pick up in the second half of this 

year, thanks to more growth-friendly policies from central banks. Beyond 2020, the IMF predicts that global 

growth will stabilize at around 3.5 percent, buoyed mainly by growth in China and India.

Indian Economy

Interna�onal Monetary Fund (IMF) has pared India's growth forecast for the just-concluded fiscal and the next 

two years, ci�ng so�er recent growth and weaker global outlook, but expects the country to retain its place as the 

fastest growing major economy. According to IMF es�mates, India's economy grew 7.1% in FY19 and is expected 

to accelerate to 7.3% growth in FY20 and to 7.5% in FY21.

India's (GDP) growth is supported by the con�nued recovery of investment and robust consump�on amid a more 

expansionary stance of monetary policy and some expected impetus from fiscal policy. Yet, a more robust and 

sustained recovery of private investment remains crucial to li� medium-term growth.

The total GST revenue collec�ons during the financial year 2018-19 was Rs. 11.77 lakh crore with a monthly gross 

average of Rs.98,114 crore. It is expected that the trend of reforms will con�nue with focus on further simplifying 

compliances, providing relief measures for the certain industrial sectors which have been adversely impacted 

a�er the implementa�on of GST, ensuring fast-track clearance for pending export refunds, etc. among others.

Stabiliza�on of GST collec�ons over the past one-and-a-half year is evidence of the GST regime overcoming ini�al 

teething issues, gaining stability and gradually entering a growth phase. 

Swiss Watch Industry

The value of Swiss watch exports over the 12 months was CHF 21.2 billion, an increase of 6.3% over 2017.The 

steady pace of growth early in the year saw a decline from the summer onwards, due to a less favourable base 

effect, but remained posi�ve overall. Some signs of a slowdown in China, in par�cular, played a role in this trend 

while, over the same period, the United States saw significantly faster growth. Macroeconomic, commercial and 

poli�cal uncertain�es influenced developments in the sector, which also had to deal with compe��on from other 

luxury goods and connected objects. 
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2018 was also marked by significant changes in distribu�on. Growth was par�cularly strong during the first half of 

the year (+10.6%) but slowed to +2.3% in the second half. 

Wristwatches accounted for 95% of total watch industry exports, by value, reaching CHF 19.9 billion, an increase 

of 6.1%. Volumes failed to keep pace, with the sector recording a decline of 2.3%, to 23.7 million items. The 

reduc�on in volume was due to quartz watches, with the number of items declining by 5.0%, despite an increase 

in value (+4.2%). Mechanical �mepieces, conversely, increased by both value (+6.6%) and volume (+3.9%). 

Watches priced below CHF 500 (export price) fell back, par�cularly in the number of items exported (-5.0%). 

Above CHF 500, results were similar and very posi�ve: +7.5% by value and +8.1% by volume. The principal 

materials – precious metals, steel and bimetal – all saw significant increases in value. Steel, used for over half of all 

watches, also saw an increase in volume (+4.3%). Conversely, the number of items in the Other materials category 

declined by 15.2%, while the Other metals group fell by 12.7%.

Main markets for Swiss Watches

Geographical distribu�on (in CHF million)

Markets During the year 2018, the markets showed the following trend (total value in million francs and % 

varia�on by comparison with 2017):

The growth in Swiss watch industry exports was led by the Asian market, while the increase in America was offset 

by the downturn observed in Europe. Asia represented 53% of the sector's turnover and grew by 12.2%. America 

(+7.2%), led by the United States, also contributed significantly to overall growth, accoun�ng for 14% of exports 

of Swiss watches. 

Europe (-2.9%) remained an important market, with a 31% share, but its situa�on was less posi�ve in 2018. Most 

Asian markets grew, more or less strongly. Hong Kong (+19.1%) was a star performer, with very strong growth 

throughout the year. China ended the year on slightly lower growth (+11.7%), with a gradual slowdown from 

January onwards. Japan (+9.1%) picked up significantly, following the reduc�ons in recent years, and peaked in 

the summer. 
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Hong Kong

USA

China

Japan

United Kingdom

Germany

Singapore

France

Italy

Other Countries 

India

Total Value

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

24

12.65%

10.29%

7.71%

6.17%

6.48%

5.41%

5.52%

4.93%

5.93%

34.33%

0.58%

100.00%

14.18%

10.50%

8.10%

6.30%

5.80%

5.30%

5.20%

5.10%

4.80%

14.60%

0.70%

100.00%

19.10%

8.20%

11.70%

9.10%

-4.40%

4.30%

0.70%

9.10%

-14.30%

5.20%

34.00%

6.30%

3,001.40

2,216.40

1,717.20

1,341.70

1,233.10

1,124.10

1,106.70

1,070.90

1,011.80

7,195.00

154.90

21,173.20

2,520.60

2,049.10

1,536.70

1,229.40

1,290.00

1,077.80

1,099.50

981.50

1,181.20

6,839.60

115.60

19,921.00

Sr. No. Markets Millions in CHF
2018            2017 2018 2017

Varia�on   Share in %   Share in %



The United States (+8.2%) returned to growth a�er three years' decline, with the pace of growth accelera�ng 

throughout 2018. Last year's declining markets were all in Europe. The downturn in the United Kingdom (-4.4%) 

has changed very li�le since the spring. The Southern European markets – Italy (-14.3%) and Spain (-11.4%) – 

were par�cularly badly affected. By contrast, Germany (+4.3%) experienced steady growth. France (+9.1%) 

benefited from a strong first six months, clearly buoyed by a significant increase in re-exports, while the second 

six months were prac�cally flat.

Main watch expor�ng countries (Direct Exports)

China saw a reduc�on in volumes in 2018. It exported 656.3 million watches, 4.6% lower than 2017. The average 

price of these products was USD 3, compared with USD 4 in the previous year. Precious metal �mepieces 

con�nued to grow very strongly, while other materials recorded a downturn. Hong Kong remained at second 

place and exported 204.7 million pieces, down by 10.2%. The average price increased by USD 2 compared to 

previous year and reached to USD 28. 

Switzerland was at third place and exported 23.7 million watches (-2.3%), its lowest level since 2009. The average 

price rose to USD 859 because of the fall recorded in the entry level segment.

United Kingdom and Germany average prices were USD 54 and USD 102 respec�vely.

Countries

	

Units	in	
Million

	Change	in	
%

	
	

2018
	

China	 656.3 	-4.6% 	
Hong	Kong	 204.7 	-10.2% 	
Switzerland

	
23.7

	
-2.3%

	United	Kingdom

	
17.3

	
+232.2%

	Germany

	

15.9

	

-1.4%

	
The signs of stagna�on, economic indicators and con�nuing uncertain�es at many levels suggest that the right 

approach to 2019 is cau�ous op�mism. Watch industry exports are expected to con�nue to grow, but at a more 

modest level.

Swiss watch exports started the 1Q19 at +2.9%, but this includes the special Brexit situa�on in the UK (+56%); 

excl. the UK it was just +0.3% with Hong Kong (+0.1%), the US (+2.6%) and Mainland China (+3.4%) being slightly 

posi�ve. 2H19 is likely to reach mid-single-digit growth and expect +4% for the full year with the low- /mid-end 

s�ll nega�ve, but the high-end con�nuing to outperform.

Overview of Indian Retail Sector

Introduc�on

The watch landscape in India has evolved immensely over the years with changing demands, significance and 

roles. Brands have been inves�ng in understanding and deciphering these changes to cater be�er to a genera�on 

that demands a combina�on of both style and technology.

According to Ken Research in India, the mass segment of watches contributes the highest to the market in terms 

of volume. As the size of the popula�on with high disposable income has increased significantly over the past 

years, the demand for luxury goods has substan�ally increased in the country. 
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If we go by the olden �mes, earlier the watches were only needed to track �me, but with the growing demand, 

today consumers want more than just a normal watch. Technology is playing a bigger role in the watch industry. 

Tradi�onally, the smartwatches were a fad with fitness enthusiasts and athletes who focused on keeping a track 

of their health and workouts. Gradually, the acceptance among the Indian audience has stepped up with a 

category of consumers who demand more than just func�onality. Catering to this category means infusing a 

sense of desirability into the products. The aim is to offer a product that is complete and makes a strong statement 

when worn. Acceptability of these can be further pushed with advancements in product features. The need of the 

hour is to offer appealing �mepieces that become an ingrained piece of one's lifestyle.

The watch industry has realised the power of combining the technology and fashion together. While tradi�onally 

the consumer focus was on men, but now it is expanding and appealing to women as well. They are now focusing 

on products that are being designed for women who don't want to have to decide between jewelry and gadget. 

Overview of Indian Watch Industry

The current situa�on of watch market in India is looking good especially for luxury, which is a niche segment. 

Innova�ons in luxury watch market play a crucial role as it drives the market growth. Also, the factors like rising 

economy with double and disposable income, increasing popula�on in young age group, increasing purchasing 

power and brand op�ons, help in growth of this sector. Today, owning a good �mepiece is a style statement. The 

growing demand for luxury products also drives the market growth for luxury watches. The Swiss watches or the 

luxury watches has its own aura around the world and India is untouched by them. While the market was ini�ally 

aimed at men, it has grown to become an essen�al piece of accessory for women as well. 

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

KDDL Limited is one of the leading Companies in India in manufacture of watch components and also emerging as 

a strong engineering company for manufacture of high quality precision stamped components and progressive 

tools for various applica�ons. KDDL also manages the largest retail chain luxury Swiss watches in the organised 

sector through its subsidiary, Ethos Limited.

The Company's revenues are primarily from manufacture of watch components, progressive tools, precision 

engineering components and sub-assemblies. An overview of the different business segments are given below:

Turnover

The turnover of the company con�nued to register healthy growth and witnessed a decent growth of 19% 

compared to a growth of 15% during the previous year. All business units and segments of company maintained a 

healthy revenue growth. 

The watches component segment of company which has a major revenue share in the overall business recorded a 

growth of 20% compared to a growth of 12% in the previous year. The turnover growth was mainly because of 

healthy growth in the Swiss watch market. Turnover from exports was higher by 25.9% whereas domes�c market 

turnover improved by 9.6%. The higher turnover in Swiss exports was also par�ally due to deprecia�on of Rupee 

compared to Swiss Franc.

All segments of the manufacturing business witnessed growth in the opera�onal revenue.  The overall turnover 

of company from domes�c market and exports market improved by 18.4% and 20.2% respec�vely.

The watch components business of domes�c market saw a healthy growth of 9.6% in value terms compared to 

previous year. This is on top of the growth of 28.9% reported in previous year from same market segment. This 

year Swiss exports market condi�ons improved and revenue from all major customers and brands was on a 
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growing trend. The exports revenue increased by 25.9% compared to a growth of 4.6% in the previous year. This 

year the Swiss watch market and exports witnessed a healthy growth of 6.3% over 2017. The major market 

segments are on recovery path and outlook is posi�ve. 

EIGEN the precision engineering business of the company saw a moderate growth of 14% in revenue compared to 

previous year growth of 38%. The growth in revenue was contributed majorly by domes�c market. Overall market 

condi�ons were also be�er in the engineering segment industry. During the year the opera�ons of the company 

were par�ally affected for some period due to consolida�on and shi�ing of the exis�ng facility to the new 

premises near Bangalore Airport. The order book posi�on, market leads and flow of RFQ's con�nues to be strong. 

Company is working with few major industrial players and the necessary re-cer�fica�ons and approvals from the 

new facility are being obtained which will help in achieving higher level of revenue growth.

Ornamental packaging manufacturing businesses of the company catering to the domes�c market witnessed a 

very healthy revenue growth of 48% mainly due to addi�on of new customers in the domes�c segment. 

The Company's overall strategy is to con�nue focus on increasing exports of watch components to Swiss market 

and to accelerate the growth of Precision Engineering business by improving internal efficiencies, reducing turn 

around �me, adding new capabili�es and increasing marke�ng efforts. 

Watch Components

During the year, dials units of the company located at Parwanoo and Baddi (H.P) and Derabassi (Punjab) improved 

the capacity u�liza�ons due to be�er order posi�on both from domes�c and export markets.  The overall 

revenue of Dial units improved by 21% compared to a growth of 27% in previous year. The Dial units' revenue 

from domes�c market grew by 10% against a growth of 43% in the previous year and in export market revenue 

grew by 38% against a growth of 14% in previous year. All major customers and brands, both in domes�c and 

exports Swiss market showed healthy recovery and the order posi�on was much healthier compared to previous 

year and this was reflected in the overall recovery of revenue in the watch dials business. 

The overall revenue of Watch Hands Units of the Company located at Bangalore registered a growth of 

14%compared to growth of 7% in the previous year. The revenue of Hands unit from domes�c market and exports 

market increased by 6% and 17% respec�vely. In the previous year domes�c market revenue had improved by 

36%, whereas exports had declined marginally by 1%. 

Precision Engineering Components

The overall revenue of our precision components manufacturing unit at Bangalore witnessed a growth of 14% 

compared to a growth of 38% in the previous year. The growth in turnover of the unit was from all segments and 

markets catered by the unit. The year on year growth in revenue from domes�c market was 28%, whereas the 

direct exports declined by 12% as some of the export's customers have shi�ed their base to India and now 

qualifies as indirect exports. During the year, company con�nued its efforts and ini�a�ves for increasing its 

presence and reach with the poten�al customer segments, by regular par�cipa�ons in the relevant trade fairs 

and exhibi�ons and the response from these exhibi�ons is posi�ve.

Other Businesses

Another business of the company relates to manufacture of Packaging for the Ornamental Jewellery, Watches, 

Wri�ng Instruments and other accessories. The revenue of the company from this business witnessed very 

healthy growth of 48% compared to a growth of 6% in the previous year. 
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Strategic Ini�a�ves

The financial year 2017-18 had witnessed improved market condi�ons both in the domes�c and exports to Swiss 

watch industry. There was a cau�ous op�mism and general percep�on of recovery in market condi�on. Orders 

posi�on was also be�er than the previous year. This trend of improved market condi�ons was prevalent in the 

domes�c watch market also and all major brands reported growth in the revenue. 

Despite the varying trends in major global economies, the outlook is posi�ve in the Swiss watch industry and 

there is a percep�on that the growth in the current year will be marginally lower than the previous year. The 

major growth is expected in upper and higher end of market segments whereas the lower end of the pyramid will 

con�nue to face volumes pressures. All major brands are re-aligning their sourcing strategy to comply with the 

new SWISS ORIGIN regula�ons and some of the brands are being re-posi�oned. 

The efforts of the company in the previous few year for consolida�on, restructuring of the watch dial 

manufacturing facili�es, enhancing the capabili�es to manufacture more complex and addi�onal features dials 

coupled with improvement in opera�onal parameters especially produc�vity and delivery compliance helped 

the company in mee�ng the challenge of improved market condi�ons and the company was be�er posi�oned to 

capture and encash the emerging opportuni�es. 

Company con�nued to focus on opera�onal parameters and ini�ated addi�onal efforts for enhancing the 

produc�vity of the key opera�onal areas and debo�lenecking the constraint areas. Many new ini�a�ves and 

specific area projects were iden�fied for enhancing the value of business by addressing the opera�onal 

bo�leneck areas. Company is con�nuously pu�ng efforts and resources for enhancing skills to op�mize 

opera�onal efficiencies, improving produc�vity and add capabili�es to manufacture addi�onal features, more 

complex components. 

In line with the improved market condi�ons, the watch hands business of the company con�nued to capture 

market share from compe��on by offering new features and designs to customers and entered many new 

customers in the high end of segment by demonstra�ng the enhanced level of capability and execu�on skills. 

The major focus of the company is to increase market presence in engineering business by enhancing the core 

capabili�es, adding value addi�ve capabili�es and aggressive marke�ng efforts. 

As a part of this exercise, during the year, company con�nued its efforts for enhancing the growth of the Precision 

Stamped Components and Progressive tooling by structured marke�ng efforts for extending the customer reach 

and improving the flow of ini�al queries and conversion to orders. Company is show casing its technical 

capabili�es by par�cipa�ng in relevant Interna�onal Trade Fairs and Exhibi�ons and the response from these fairs 

is encouraging. The market response to Company efforts in the digital marke�ng of capabili�es and capaci�es in 

the targeted countries and the response / leads is healthy. The flow of RFQ's both from exis�ng and new 

customers are on the improving trend. Many new customers were added by the company, both from domes�c 

and exports markets. All leading indicators from the market and customers side for the business growth are in the 

posi�ve direc�on.

In addi�on to this, the unit con�nues to focus on improving the internal efficiencies by improving manpower 

produc�vity, OEE, machines and tools efficiency thru' structured processes of enhancing skills, quality of 

machines and tools. The company con�nues to view precision engineering business as major growth drivers in 

the coming years.

The revenue of the company during the year increased from all type of capabili�es such as tool and mould 

making, stamped components, manufacture of plas�c injec�on moulded components and sub-assembly of the 

components. 
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As a part of the growth strategy, company is recalibra�ng and realigning the segments and customers to be 

focused and many low value and low capability segments are planned to be replaced with high capability, high 

value and be�er margin segments.  This realignment of customers will be done over a period of two years as the 

necessary cer�fica�ons and approvals for qualifica�on. 

During the year, company completed its expansion project near Bangalore Airport in KIADB Aerospace Park and 

shi�ed the opera�ons from exis�ng facili�es in Peenya Industrial Area, Bangalore to the new facility and now 

these are opera�onal from new loca�on. Similarly, the new capability of electropla�ng is fully func�onal and 

opera�onal. During the year company has expanded the tool room capacity also and added infrastructure and 

equipment to reduce the lead �me for delivery of tools. 

During the year, the order posi�on of the Packaging business was much healthier compared to earlier years 

especially from the watch segment. The efforts of the company to add customers with large series is giving 

sa�sfactory results and the order posi�on is be�er. 

During the year, the website of company www.ethoswatches.com, was u�lised to the maximum poten�al for 

enhancing the online leads and conversion. This pla�orm is provided to subsidiary Ethos Limited on rental basis 

and Ethos con�nues to further upgrade and enhance the website to a�ract more customers and expand reach of 

customers by our subsidiary Ethos Limited. During the year this website has been sold to subsidiary at a fair value 

as determined by the independent valuers.

Company con�nues to iden�fy and eliminate the non-value-added processes for improving internal controls and 

efficiencies and during the year, company has extended the SAP tools for many addi�onal processes and 

automated many other processes for be�er compliances and cost op�miza�ons.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Revenue

The gross opera�ng income of the company improved from Rs. 1472 million to Rs. 1752 million represen�ng an 

increase of 19% over the previous year. The turnover of the company was broadly stable in both halves of the year. 

The watch market condi�ons and overall environment was be�er compared to previous year and structured 

focus and efforts of the company helped in recording healthy growth. 

The watch segment gross opera�ng income improved from Rs. 1104 million to Rs. 1309 million recording a 

growth of 18.5%, almost similar to the growth level witnessed in previous year. The precision engineering 

business stream revenue increased from Rs. 341 million to Rs. 388 million, registering a healthy growth of 14% 

compared to growth of 38% in the previous year. The revenue from residual business stream mainly comprising of 

ornamental packaging improved from Rs. 48 million to Rs. 71 million registering a growth of 48% during the year.

The gross domes�c sale of the company improved from Rs. 757 million to Rs. 893 million represen�ng a healthy 

growth of 18% compared to previous year growth of 40.2%, whereas the direct and indirect export revenue 

improved from Rs. 758 million to Rs. 912 million registering a growth of 20.2% against a growth of 5.5% in the 

previous year. 

Margins

During the year the margins of the company were healthy and remained in the range of 20%, due to improved 

market condi�ons leading to be�er order posi�on and efforts of the company on improving produc�vity and 

focus on reducing costs and overheads. In addi�on, strategic ini�a�ves of the company for developing and 

enhancing the revenue from high margin business helped in overall healthy growth. 

KDDL Limited

55



The earnings before interest, deprecia�on, taxes and appropria�ons improved from Rs. 305 million to Rs. 359 

million, increase of almost 18% over the previous year. The opera�ng EBIDTA earning a�er elimina�ng the 

excep�onal, abnormal cost and CSR expenditure reduced marginally from 20.3% to 20.1%. The marginal 

reduc�on in EBIDTA percentage was due to front ending of the expenditure for sustaining strategic growth in key 

business segments of the company. 

Key Financial Ra�os

All key financial ra�os of the company are very healthy and on the improving trend.

l Debtors Turnover and Average Collec�on Period

 During the year average debtor's turnover ra�o improved from 6.1 �mes to 6.7 �mes and average 

collec�on period reduced from 59 days to 54 days due to be�er credit control policy and renego�a�on of 

the payment terms with the customers.

l Inventory Turnover and average inventory holding period

 During the year the inventory turnover also improved from 1.4 �mes to 1.5 �mes and the average 

inventory holding period reduced from 8.6 months to 7.8 months. The inventory holding period is 

typically high in our business and industry due to smaller lot quan��es and MOQ requirements of the 

most suppliers. In addi�on, due to variety of feature and complexi�es, different material and inputs are 

required to be stored for mee�ng the requirements of the customers. 

l Interest Coverage

 During the year interest coverage ra�o on the normalised profit of the company reduced marginally from 

7.5 to 6.8 due to increase in interest costs because of addi�onal borrowings for the Capital expansion and 

the general hardening of the interest rates. The interest coverage ra�o remains very healthy as compared 

to general industry trend. 

l Current Ra�o

 During the year current ra�o of the company improved from 1.13 to 1.42 �mes due to be�er working 

capital management and op�mum u�lisa�on of the working capital borrowings. The current ra�o excl. 

the current maturi�es of non-current borrowings improved from 1.33 to 1.95 �mes. The current 

maturi�es of the non-current borrowings generally remain around the same levels as debt / deposits are 

replaced with the alternate borrowings. The current ra�o of the company remains healthy as per banking 

norms as well as industrial trends. 

l Debt Equity Ra�o

 During the year secured debt to Equity ra�o of the company improved from 0.41 to 0.25 and total debt to 

equity improved from 0.51 to 0.34 due to healthy internal accruals, fresh induc�on of equity at a 

premium and restricted level of borrowings. Debt-equity ra�o of the company is very healthy compared 

to the general industry trends.

l Opera�ng Profit Margin (%)

 During the year normalised opera�ng profit margin of company improved from 16.9% to 17.6% due to 

various ini�a�ves and focussed ac�ons of the management on marke�ng, opera�ons and people front. 

The gross margin of company had reduced marginally from 75% to 72% due to changed product mix.  
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l Net Profit Margin (%)

 During the year the normalized net profit before tax a�er excluding the abnormal and one�me gains 

from non-opera�ons improved from 12.2% to 12.3%.

l Shareholders' Funds

 The company's reserves improved from Rs. 1193 million as on 31st March 2018 to Rs. 1554 millionas on 

31st March 2019, on account of retained earnings from the profitability of the company and due to 

receipt of share premium of Rs. 263.1 million on conversion of 264150 share warrants into equity shares 

of face value Rs. 10 each (Warrants allo�ed during 2017-18 on a preferen�al basis for cash at a price of Rs. 

265 including premium of Rs. 255) and 416666 equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each on a preferen�al 

basis for cash at a price of Rs. 480 (including premium of Rs. 470). The share issue expenses of Rs. 3.6 

million was adjusted against the share premium.

 The Share capital of the company also increased from Rs. 110.4 million to Rs. 117.2 million on account of 

allotment of equity shares on preferen�al basis.

l Loan Funds and Cost of Debt

 The interest cost as a percentage to total revenue increased marginally from 1.9% to 2.3% in 2018-19.The 

interest cost as a percentage to total revenue increased due to hardening of interest rates and addi�onal 

borrowings for the expansion of the precision engineering facility. During the year, all banks increased 

the interest rates and despite improvement in the credit ra�ng of the company, average interest rates 

were higher than the previous year. Reserve Bank of India off-late has reduced the interest rates, but 

banks con�nue to lag in passing on the benefit to customers. Company con�nues to reduce its high costs 

debts and working capital borrowings by effec�ve u�liza�on of available funds. All new debt borrowings 

of the company are being nego�ated and concluded at lower interest rates. The overall simple average 

cost of debt increased from 6% to 7.1% during the previous year.

 The Company con�nues to focus and op�mize the working capital cycle and reduce cost of borrowing by 

effec�ve use and availment of different financing op�ons. The company con�nues its efforts on 

restric�ng the overall borrowing of the company for be�er leverage. 

l Fixed Assets

 Gross Fixed Assets of the company including Capital work in progress during the year increased from Rs. 

1681 million to Rs. 1855 million mainly on account of expansion project of precision engineering business 

in KIADB Aerospace Park, near Bangaluru Airport. In addi�on, some investment was done on expanding 

the capacity in our watch components business and other normal capital expenditure in the different 

units for increasing produc�vity, new product developments and addi�on of other assets for quality, 

safety, Informa�on technology and administra�ve func�ons.
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Subsidiary Companies and Joint Ventures

Ethos Limited

FY1819 has been a year with impressive performance for the company. Revenues increased by 24% to Rs. 443.4 

crores from 357.8 crores. Margins also showed an impressive increase to 27.5% of net sales from 23.5% of net 

sales. EBIDTA margins also increased by 53% and from 4.5% of total income to 6.9% of total income. Profit for the 

year increased from Rs. 4.04 crores to Rs. 11 crores, an increase of 172%. 

This excep�onal performance is a result of the various strategic ini�a�ves that company has been pursuing over 
the last few years. The company has increased its por�olio of brands for which it is the exclusive retail partner in 
India. In FY19, the sale of exclusive brands accounted for 16% of the sales, up from 13% in FY18. In terms of share 
of gross margins, the share of exclusive brands has increased from 21% to 26%. This has had a salutary impact on 
the overall gross margins of the company. 

The Omni–channel strategy of providing a seamless experience to the customer online and offline con�nues to 
be very successful with almost 28% of the en�re sales of the company coming from the leads generated from the 
Company's website. This is despite the exclusion of certain high-profile brands from the website due to brand 
guidelines. 

The Company also focused on its offline store experience and has invested in the renova�ons at its major stores. 
The impact on sales on these renovated stores is evident from the improved sales performance at these 
storesand the Company plans to invest further at other stores for upgrading the look and feel of its stores. In 
addi�on to this, the Company invested in its first flagship store in Hyderabad. This store will be, in many ways, 
groundbreaking for luxury retail in India in terms of the size, splendor and use of state-of-the-art technology. The 
store has now been launched in FY19-20. The Company will be closely watching the performance of this store for 
deciding on launching more such stores.

In terms of new ver�cals of growth, the Company is con�nuing to invest in A�er-sales service by launching a state-
of-the-art service center at New Delhi. The service center has recruited highly experienced foreign trained service 
technicians and has already acquired accredita�ons from major watch brands. In addi�on to this, the Company 
also forayed into the business of sales of pre-owned watches where the Company sees a large poten�al. Pending 
certain clarifica�ons on the legal aspects, the sales in the ini�al few months of the business is quite encouraging 
for a scaling up the business.

The Company raised equity capital of Rs. 29 crores during the FY19 at a pre-money valua�on of Rs. 480 crores. Of 
this, Rs. 24 crores was from outside investors and the balance was from its parent, KDDL Limited. 

During the year, the company opened 4 new stores taking the total count of store to 47 by the end of FY1819.

Pylania SA

During the financial year 2018-19, company con�nued with its exis�ng streams of business revenue related to 
watch components par�al manufacturing, trading of watches and accessories, consultancy and advisory 
services. During the year the par�al manufacturing and finishing opera�ons related to watch dials manufacturing 
was stopped and the major focus in manufacturing was related to watch hands. During the year, company also 
witnessed growth in the watches trading to India for the some of the major Swiss Brands like Titoni, Corum, 
Raymond Weil and ORIS. 

As a result of these ini�a�ves the revenue of the company during the year witnessed healthy growth to CHF 3258 
K from CHF 2831 K in 2017-18, registering a healthy growth of 15%. During the year, company con�nued to 
provide consultancy and managerial services to customers also. 

Management of Pylania con�nuous to keep a close watch and tap onrestric�ng overheads and its financial 
posi�on is on the improving trend. 
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The Company has reported opera�onal profit of CHF 61 K during the financial year compared to profit of CHF 188 
K in previous year. The fall in the profitability is due to change product mix as the higher revenue is from watches 
trading compared to manufacturing opera�ons where the margins are lower. In addi�on, during the year 
company has incurred expenditure for evalua�on and comple�on of the new acquisi�on of watch hands 
manufacturing facility of Es�ma AG in Switzerland. 

The management is confident of improving the profitability and performance of the company with the need 
based strategic ini�a�ves and ac�ons. 

Es�ma AG

During the year, company has acquired 100% stake of Es�ma AG, a renowned Swiss watch hands manufacturing 
facility in Grenchan, Switzerland w.e.f. 1st January 2019. The strategic ini�a�ve to acquire the compe�tor in 
Switzerland was to enhance the market share and value of the company to Swiss customers considering the 
emerging opportuni�es a�er the implementa�on of the SWISS ORIGIN regula�ons w.e.f. 1st January 2017. 

This acquisi�on will complement and support the expansion and enhancing market share strategies of the 
companies. A�er the acquisi�on, company will be be�er placed to meet and service those Swiss customers who 
are dependent on swiss based sourcing. 

Es�ma AG was founded in 1924 in Grenchan and was a well-established supplier of watch hands to swiss watch 
industry and mainly focused on the mid-price segment. However, presently it was struggling to remain profitable 
due to failure to upgrade technology and offer new designs and faster deliveries and was on the verge of 
bankruptcy. The present financial posi�on of the company was largely due to declining revenues and losing 
market share to KDDL. 

This acquisi�on fits into the strategy of KDDL to expand its footprint in Swiss manufacturing and it is in a be�er 
posi�on to turn in around with replica�ng its strengths and capabili�es from Indian opera�ons and encashing the 
exis�ng strong customer rela�onship. The Swiss Origin regula�ons will be act as a catalyst for the revival and 
growth of this business unit. 

Satva Jewellery and Design Limited

During the financial year, there was change in business opera�ons or the status of the legal en�ty merger with the 
KDDL Limited. KDDL board and shareholders have already approved the merger of this company with parent 
company to bring synergy in the opera�ons and to u�lize its resources for crea�ng value for shareholders. 
Presently merger ac�vi�es and procedures are in process and during the current financial year we expect to get 
the necessary statutory approvals for the merger with the parent company.

Human Resource Management

The skills and capabili�es of our team remain our most valuable asset. KDDL seeks to a�ract and retain the best 
talent available. Human Resource Management incorporates a process driven approach that invests regularly in 
the training and development needs of employees through succession planning, job rota�on, on the job training 
and extensive training workshops and programs. Company has also engaged external consultants and advisors 
for the various interven�ons to improve and building the human capital for the emerging business requirements.

The Company's Talent Management process focused on building talent at various levels in the organiza�on. A 
number of professionals in different func�ons had been hired keeping in mind the company's future needs to 
build a leadership pipeline. Also, new people had been hired to build capabili�es in new areas and to fill any gaps. 
As such, the Company has focused on developing internal talent through a robust iden�fica�on process and with 
a clear development plan designed for each such talent. 

During the year the Company held various employee engagement programs in order to bolster employee morale 
inculcate a feeling of team work and camaraderie and create a mechanism to recognize individual and team 
contribu�ons to the organiza�ons. Programs such as Chairman's Annual Awards and Star Performer Awards 
recognize and reward individual and team achievements across the Group. The total number of manpower of the 
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company, both regular and contractual was over 1500 during the year under review.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

A strong internal control culture is an important focus and thrust area in the company. The company has 
comprehensive internal systems, controls and policies for all the major processes to ensure the reliability of 
financial repor�ng, �mely feedback on achievement of opera�onal and strategic goals, compliance with policies, 
procedures, laws, and regula�ons, safeguarding of assets and economical and efficient use of resources. 

The formalized systems of control facilitate effec�ve compliance as per Clause 49 of the Lis�ng Agreement. The 
company also has well documented Standard Opera�ng Procedures (SOPs) for various processes which are 
periodically reviewed for changes warranted due to business needs. 

The Internal Auditors of the company con�nuously monitors the efficacy of internal controls/ compliance with 
SOPs with the objec�ve of providing to the Audit Commi�ee and the Board of Directors, an independent, 
objec�ve and reasonable assurance on the adequacy and effec�veness of the organiza�on's risk management, 
control and governance processes. 

The scope and authority of the Internal Audit ac�vity are well defined in the Internal Audit scope and guidelines, 
approved by the Audit Commi�ee. Internal Auditors develops a risk based annual audit plan with inputs from 
major stake holders, and the major focus areas as per previous audit reports. 

All significant audit observa�ons are reviewed periodically and follow-up ac�ons thereon are reported to the 
Audit Commi�ee. The Audit Commi�ee also meet the company's Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors to 
ascertain their views on the financial statements, including the financial repor�ng system, compliance to 
accoun�ng policies and procedures, the adequacy and effec�veness of the internal controls and systems 
followed by the company.

The top and senior management of the company also assesses opportuni�es for improvement in business 
processes, systems and controls, provides recommenda�ons, designed to add value to the organiza�on and 
follows up on the implementa�on of correc�ve ac�ons and improvements in business processes.

The senior management of the company meets periodically to assess the performance of the each business 
segment and key func�ons of the company and areas for improvement of performance / controls are iden�fied 
and reviewed on con�nuous basis.

RISKS, THREATS AND CONCERNS

Risk means uncertain�es about events and their outcomes that could have a material impact on the performance 
and projec�ons of the Company. Since risk is inherent in every business, it is the Company's responsibility to 
minimize its incidence in order to protect and enhance shareholder value. 

Our framework for comba�ng risks recognizes that risks may be divided into two broad categories – risks that are 
common and relevant for most business in general and risks that are more specifically applicable to your 
company and business in par�cular. The Risk Management Policy at KDDL inter-alia provides for Risk 
iden�fica�on, assessment, and repor�ng and mi�ga�on procedure. The Policy is con�nuously updated and 
adopted to the changing environment in which the Company operates.  

Risks of General Nature

Risks rela�ng to the general macroeconomic environment of the Company include risks associated with poli�cal 
and legal changes, changes in tax structures, and commercial rules & laws. The Company keeps a proac�ve track 
to an�cipate such changes and mi�gate associated risks to the extent possible. 

Risks related to man-made and natural disasters such as explosions, earthquakes, storms as well as civil 
disturbances are handled by following best prac�ces in the design of structures and “safety first” as a guiding 
principle while designing technical and business processes duly supplemented with requisite insurance 
coverage.
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The third set of general risks relates to risks from market led changes. These include risks associated with sudden 
fall in GDP and growth rates, overall market condi�on in India and abroad, or sudden changes in market 
preferences. The mi�ga�on of these risks is achieved by a cost-effec�ve and flexible working structure which 
would allow the Company to scale up or scale down working in affected areas in accordance with the changes. 

Specific Risks

We have iden�fied the following specific risks that need more detailed a�en�on in the present circumstances 
and business of the Company. 

Risks due to decline in overall demand for watches: While we remain confident of a steady growth in the demand 
of watches in India over the next 8~10 years, we are aware of the decline of the watch as a �me keeping 
instrument. At the same �me, we see an evident increase in the watch becoming an important fashion accessory 
and also as an ac�vity monitoring cum communica�ng instrument. The risk of such decline in the func�onal value 
of a watch is mi�gated by posi�oning ourselves to be�er serve the watch as a fashion and wearable technology. 

Risks pertaining to over dependence on few companies: The Company has enjoyed a close and mutually 
beneficial associa�on with several leaders in the watch business in India and Switzerland. This inevitably has lead 
to a substan�al part of the Company's business being related to these groups. 

Notwithstanding the strong standing of these brands and companies and our Company's enduring rela�onship 
with them, we recognize that broad-basing our customer base and brand partner base is a priority to mi�gate any 
inherent risk from over-dependence on any specific partner. As a part of this exercise, company con�nues to 
enhance its customer base and also increasing its presence in the new fields and segments.

Risks related to over dependence on one business: The company is structurally focussing on increasing the 
revenue from other manufacturing business streams and strategically enhancing the growth of these segments, 
which will help is off-se�ng the over dependence on the watch segment. In order to overcome the risks of over 
dependence on watch components, company is aggressively focusing on the business growth from other 
business segment of precision engineering components and also adding new capabili�es for enhancement of 
revenue stream.

Foreign Exchange Risks: More than 50% of the Company's manufacturing turnover comes from exports, 
denominated in Swiss Francs and US Dollars. The fall and rise in these currencies can seriously impact the working 
of the Company in the short and medium term. In the current year, the fall in the value of these currencies will 
have a significant impact on the export earnings in Rupee terms and thereby on the profitability of the Company. 
This risk is mi�gated with several measures which include:

l Hedging of currencies to the extent reasonably possible, also keeping in mind natural hedge we enjoy by 
expor�ng and impor�ng in the same currency. 

l Balancing of imports and exports. 

Risk related to Personnel: Our business is increasingly dependent on the skills and competencies of our 
employees and management team. The general war for talent in our growing economy has created a risk related 
to the reten�on of key personnel both in manufacturing and retail sector. This risk is mi�gated through effec�ve 
HR policies rela�ng to recruitment and reten�on and a proac�ve remunera�on and rewards policy that is 
periodically reviewed at the highest management level. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Certain statements made in the “Management Discussion and Analysis Report” rela�ng to the Company's 
objec�ves, projec�ons, outlook, expecta�ons, es�mates and others may cons�tute “forward looking 
statements' within the meaning of applicable laws and regula�ons. Actual results may differ materially from 
those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make significant difference to the Company's opera�ons 
and actual results include among others, Government Regula�ons, statutes, tax laws, economic developments 
within India and countries in which the company conducts businesses, li�ga�ons and other allied factors.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

I. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

 Corporate Governance is the applica�on of best management prac�ces, compliance of laws, rules, 

regula�ons and adherence of standards for achieving the objec�ves of the Company, enhance shareholder 

value and discharge of social responsibility. The Corporate Governance structure in the Company assigns 

responsibility and authority to Board of Directors, its commi�ees and execu�ve management, senior 

management, employees etc. 

 The Company acknowledges its responsibility to its esteemed stakeholders. Even in a fiercely compe��ve 

business environment, the Management and the employees of the Company are commi�ed to uphold the 

core values of transparency, integrity, honesty and accountability which are fundamental to the Saboo 

Business Group. The Company believes that Corporate Governance helps to achieve commitment and goals 

to enhance stakeholder value by focusing towards all stakeholders. Any good corporate governance 

provides an appropriate framework for the Board, its commi�ees and the execu�ve management to carry 

out the objec�ves that are in the interest of the Company and its stakeholders. The Company maintains 

highest levels of transparency, accountability and good management prac�ces through the adop�on and 

monitoring of corporate strategies, goals and procedures to comply with its legal and ethical 

responsibili�es. 

II. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 (a) Composi�on and a�endance in mee�ngs

  The Board of Directors of the Company has an op�mum combina�on of execu�ve and non-execu�ve 

directors. The Board of Directors presently comprises of 10 (Ten) members including 2 (two) Whole-

Time directors, i.e., the Chairman–cum-Managing Director and the Whole Time Director-cum-Chief 

Financial Officer. The composi�on of the Board is in conformity with regula�on 17 of Securi�es & 

Exchange Board of India( Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirement) Regula�ons, 2015 

[SEBI(LODR) Regula�ons]

st   During the financial year ended on 31 March 2019, 9 (Nine) Board Mee�ngs were held and the gap 

between two mee�ngs did not exceed one hundred twenty days. The dates on which the Board 

Mee�ngs were held are as follows: 

14th
 May, 2018  2nd

 June, 2018  11th  June, 2018  14th  July, 2018

9th
 August, 2018  3rd

 November, 2018  
8th

 October, 2018  10th
 December, 2018

13th February, 2019

  The following table gives the composi�on and category of the Directors, their a�endance at the Board 

mee�ngs held during the year, at the last Annual General mee�ng and number of equity shares held by 

non-execu�ve directors :

62

KDDL Limited

Annexure-VIII
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Name of the 
Director 

 Designa�on
  

Category of 
Directorship 

 No. of 
Board 
Mee�ngs 
a�ended 

 

A�endance at the 
last AGM held on 
14.08.2018

 

Number of Shares / 
Conver�ble instru-
ments held by non-
execu�ve directors 

Mr. Yashovardhan 
Saboo

 
Chairman 
& Managing 
Director

 
 

Promoter-
Execu�ve

 
9

 
Yes

 
-

 

*Mr. Jagesh Khaitan Director Non- Execu�ve 
Director 

5  Yes  466  

Mr. Anil Khanna Director Independent-
Non Execu�ve 

9  Yes  2100  

Mrs. Ranjana Agarwal  Director Independent- 
Non Execu�ve 

6  Yes  -  

Mr. Praveen Gupta  Director  Independent- 
Non Execu�ve 

7  No  -  

Mr. Vishal  Sa�nder 
Sood  

Nominee 
Director  

Non- Execu�ve 
Nominee 

5  Yes  -  

Mr. Jai Vardhan 
Saboo 

Director Promoter- Non 
Execu�ve 

3  No  -  

Mr. Sanjiv Sachar Director Independent- 
Non Execu�ve

 

7  No  1400  

Mr. Sanjeev Kumar 
Masown

 
Whole 
Time Director
cum-

 
CFO

 

Execu�ve
 

9
 

Yes 
   

** Mr. Torsten 
Buchwald

 

Director
 

Independent-
 Non Execu�ve
 

1
 

** NA
  

 

Directorship and Commi�ee's Membership

Name of the 
Director 

 No. of
 

Directorship in 
other Public 
Limited 
Companies

 

*** No. of 
Commi�ee 
posi�ons held in 
other companies

 

Directorship in other listed Companies and 
category of directorship

 

Chairman Member
 

Mr. Yashovardhan 
Saboo

 
5
 

1
 

2
 

Kuantum Papers Limited –
 

Non Execu�ve 
Independent Director #

 

*Mr. Jagesh Khaitan 2 - 2 Kuantum Papers Limited -Execu�ve Director-
Chairperson  

Mr. Anil Khanna 1 1 1 Nil  

Mrs. Ranjana Agarwal  6 1 5 a) ICRA Limited -  Non Execu�ve Independent 
Director  

b) Indo Rama Synthe�cs (India) Limited -  

Non Execu�ve Independent Director  
c)  Ugro Cap�al Limited -  -  Non Execu�ve 

Independent Director  
Mr. Praveen Gupta  1 - 1 Nil  
Mr. Vishal  Sa�nder 
Sood 

3 - - a) Manpasand Beverages Limited –  Nominee 
Director ##



Name of the 
Director 

 No. of
 

Directorship in 
other Public 
Limited 
Companies

 

*** No. of 
Commi�ee 
posi�ons held in 
other companies

 

Directorship in other listed Companies and 
category of directorship

 

Chairman Member
 

    
b) Pennar Industries Limited -  Non-Execu�ve 

-  Non Independent Director  
Mr. Jai Vardhan 
Saboo 

- - - Nil  

Mr. Sanjiv Sachar
 

1
 

-
 

1
 

HDFC Bank  -
 

Non Execu�ve Independent 
Director

 
Mr. Sanjeev Kumar 
Masown

 

1
 

-
 

-
 

Nil
 

** Mr. Torsten 
Buchwald

 

-
   

Nil
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rd
 *Designa�on was changed to Non-Execu�ve Director w.e.f 3  November 2018.

rd ** Mr. Torsten Buchwald was appointed as an Addi�onal (Independent) Director w.e.f  3  November 2018.

 *** Commi�ee posi�ons includes only the membership of Audit Commi�ee, and Stakeholder's 
Rela�onship Commi�ee as per SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons , 2015).

th # Ceased to be a Director of the Company w.e.f. 7  August, 2019.
th ## Ceased to be a Director of the Company w.e.f. 24  May, 2019.

 Except Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo and Mr. Jai Vardhan Saboo, none among other directors have any inter-se 
rela�onships.

 Familiarisa�on programme for Independent Directors

 Le�er of Appointment(s) are issued to Independent Directors se�ng out in detail, the terms of 
appointment, du�es, responsibili�es and expected �me commitments. The web link for the Familiariza�on 
Programmes for Independent Directors is h�p://www.kddl.com/html/familirisa�on-programme-for-the-
independent-directors.

III. COMMITTEES OF BOARD

 Currently, the Board has four commi�ees: Audit Commi�ee, Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee, 
Corporate Social Responsibility Commi�ee and Stakeholders' Rela�onship Commi�ee.

1.    AUDIT COMMITTEE

 The scope of ac�vi�es of the Audit Commi�ee are as set out in Regula�on 18 of SEBI(LODR) Regula�ons, 
2015 read with Sec�on 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The terms of reference of the Audit Commi�ee are 
broadly as follows:  

 1. Oversight of the company's financial repor�ng process and the disclosure of its financial informa�on to 
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

 2. Recommenda�on for appointment, remunera�on and terms of appointment of auditors of the 
company;

 3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

 4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before 



submission to the board for approval, with par�cular reference to:

  a) Ma�ers required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the 

Board's report in terms of clause (c) of sub-sec�on 3 of sec�on 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

  b) Changes, if any, in accoun�ng policies and prac�ces and reasons for the same

  c) Major accoun�ng entries involving es�mates based on the exercise of judgment by management

  d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings

  e) Compliance with lis�ng and other legal requirements rela�ng to financial statements

  f) Disclosure of any related party transac�ons

  g) Modified opinion(s) in the dra� audit report

 5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board 

for approval;

 6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / applica�on of funds raised through and issue 

(public issue, rights issue, preferen�al issue, etc.), the statement of funds u�lized for purposes other 

than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / no�ce and the report submi�ed by the 

monitoring agency monitoring the u�lisa�on of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making 

appropriate recommenda�ons to the Board to take up steps in this ma�er;

 7. Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and effec�veness of audit process;

 8. Approval or any subsequent modifica�on of transac�ons of the company with related par�es;

 9. Scru�ny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

 10. Valua�on of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

 11. Evalua�on of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

 12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 

internal control systems;

 13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit func�on, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, repor�ng structure coverage 

and frequency of internal audit;

 14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

 15. Reviewing the findings of any internal inves�ga�ons by the internal auditors into ma�ers where there is 

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and repor�ng 

the ma�er to the board;

 16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 

well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

 17. To look into the reasons for substan�al defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 

shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

 18. To review the func�oning of the Whistle Blower mechanism; 
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 19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-�me Finance Director or any other person heading the 

finance func�on or discharging that func�on) a�er assessing the qualifica�ons, experience and 

background, etc. of the candidate;

 20. Carrying out any other func�on as is men�oned in the terms of reference of the Audit Commi�ee.

st  During the financial year ended on 31 March 2019, 6 (Six) mee�ngs of the Audit Commi�ee were held. The 

dates on which the mee�ngs of the Audit Commi�ee were held, are as under:

th th th 14  May, 2018   25  May, 2018   9  August, 2018 

rd th
 3  November, 2018  13  February, 2019

 The composi�on of the Audit Commi�ee and the details of mee�ngs a�ended by the Directors are given below:

A�endance of Members at Mee�ngs of the Audit Commi�ee  

Name of the Director  Category  Designa�on  Mee�ngs a�ended

* Mr. Anil Khanna  Independent Non Execu�ve  Chairman  5  

**Mr. Jagesh Khaitan  Non-Execu�ve  Member  2  
Mrs. Ranjana Agarwal  Independent Non Execu�ve  Member  4  
***Mr. Praveen Gupta

 
Independent Non Execu�ve

 
Member

 
1

 
**** Mr. Yashovardhan 
Saboo

Promoter & Execu�ve
 

Member
 

3
 

rd*Mr. Anil Khanna was appointed as Chairman w.e.f 3  November, 2018.
rd** Mr. Jagesh Khaitan ceased to be Chairman of the Commi�ee w.e f 3  November, 2018.

rd *** Mr. Praveen Gupta was appointed as Member of the Commi�ee w.e.f 3  November, 2018.
rd**** Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo ceased to be Member of the Commi�ee w.e.f 3  November, 2018.

The Audit Commi�ee invites such Execu�ves as it considers appropriate to be present at its mee�ngs. The Chief 

Financial Officer and Company Secretary a�ended all the mee�ngs. The Statutory Auditors are invited to the 

mee�ngs in which Quarterly/Annual Accounts are considered. The Internal Auditors are also invited to the 

mee�ngs in which Internal Audit Reports are discussed. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the 

Commi�ee.

2.     NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

 The role of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on commi�ee as set out in SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015. Brief 

descrip�on of terms of reference include the following:

 1. Formula�on of the criteria for determining qualifica�ons, posi�ve a�ributes and independence of a 

director and recommend to the Board a policy, rela�ng to the remunera�on of the directors, key 

managerial personnel and other employees;

 2. Formula�on of criteria for evalua�on of Independent Directors and the Board;

 3. Devising a policy on Board diversity;

 4. Iden�fying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 

management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their 

appointment and removal.
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 5. whether to extend or con�nue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the 

report of performance evalua�on of independent directors.

st During the financial year ended 31  March, 2019, 2 (two) mee�ngs of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on 
th thCommi�ee were held on 14  May, 2018 and 9  August, 2018.

st The composi�on of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee as on 31  March 2019 is as given below:

A�endance of Members at Mee�ngs of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee  

Name of the Director  Category  Designa�on  Mee�ng a�ended

*Mr. Sanjiv Sachar  Independent Non Execu�ve  Chairman  2  

Mrs. Ranjana Agarwal  Independent Non Execu�ve  Member  1  

Mr. Praveen Gupta  Independent Non Execu�ve  Member  2  
**Mr. Jagesh Khaitan  Non-Execu�ve Director  Member  1  

rd
*   Mr. Sanjiv Sachar  was appointed as Chairman w.e.f 3  November, 2018.

rd** Mr. Jagesh Khaitan ceased to be Chairman of the Commi�ee w.e f 3  November, 2018.

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Commi�ee.

Performance evalua�on criteria for Independent Directors-

The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee has laid down the criteria for performance evalua�on of 

Independent Directors which are as under-

 l Frequency of mee�ngs a�ended

 l Timeliness of circula�ng Agenda for mee�ngs and descrip�veness

 l Quality, quan�ty and �meliness of flow of informa�on to the Board

 l Promptness with which Minutes of the mee�ngs are drawn and circulated

 l Opportunity to discuss ma�ers of cri�cal importance, before decisions are made

 l Familiarity with the objects, opera�ons and other func�ons of the company

 l Importance given to Internal Audit Reports, Management responses and steps towards improvement

 l Avoidance of conflict of interest

 l Exercise of fiscal oversight and monitoring financial performance

 l Level of monitoring of Corporate Governance Regula�ons and compliance

 l Adherence to Code of Conduct and Business ethics by directors individually and collec�vely

 l Monitoring of Regulatory compliances and risk assessment

 l Review of Internal Control Systems

 l Performance of the Chairperson of the company including leadership quali�es.

 l Performance of the Whole �me Director

 l Overall performance of the Board/ Commi�ees.

The members of the Board jointly discuss, evaluate and iden�fy the areas for improving the performance and 
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effec�veness of the Board.

Remunera�on of Director

There was no pecuniary rela�onship or transac�on between the Non-Execu�ve Directors and the Company 

during the financial year 2018-19 except receipt of si�ng fees from  the Company for a�ending the mee�ngs of 

the Board and Commi�ees thereof.

Criteria of making payments to Non-Execu�ve Directors 

The remunera�on of Non Execu�ve Directors shall be finalised considering the following: 

 a) They will be en�tled to receive remunera�on by way of si�ng fees for a�ending mee�ngs of the Board 

or its Commi�ees at rates within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 

thereunder. 

 b) Non Execu�ve Directors do not par�cipate in Board discussions which relate to their own remunera�on. 

 c) They receive reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred in a�ending the Board, Commi�ee and 

other adhoc mee�ngs. 

 d) Remunera�on is paid subject to deduc�on of Income Tax at source and payment of applicable Service Tax. 

Name of the Director  Si�ng Fees paid (Gross) (Rs.)  

 Mr. Anil Khanna 3,00,000

  

Mr. Sanjiv Sachar 1,90,000
  

Mr. Jagesh Khaitan 165,000
 

Mr. Praveen Gupta 2,10,000

 
Mr. Jai Vardhan Saboo 45,000

 

Mrs. Ranjana Agarwal 2,45,000

 
Mr. Torsten Buchwald 40,000

Total 11,95, 000
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  During the year under review, the Non Execu�ve Directors of the Company were paid si�ng fees as 

under (including fees paid for Commi�ee mee�ngs):

Remunera�on of the Execu�ve Directors

The Company has framed a Remunera�on Policy, the brief terms of which are given hereunder:-

 a) At the �me of appointment or re-appointment, the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Managing Director and 

Whole Time Director shall be paid such remunera�on as may be mutually agreed between the Company 

(which includes the Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee and the Board of Directors) and the 

respec�ve Director within the overall limits as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 

made thereunder.

 b) The remunera�on shall be subject to the approval of the Members of the Company in General Mee�ng. 

 c) The remunera�on of the above said directors is broadly divided into fixed and variable component 

whereas the remunera�on of Chairman consists of fixed components only.



Name  Salary  Perquisites & 
Allowances  

Bonus paid/provided 
in 2018-19  

Total  

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo  15,945,181  322,500 -- 16,267,681  
Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Masown  8,228,094  39,600  

 

-- 8,267,694 

 a. The Salary includes Performance incen�ve also.
b. The Company has not granted any Stock Op�ons to its Directors or Employees during Financial Year 2018-19. 

(Amount in `)
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 d) The remunera�on of the directors may also include Employee Stock Op�on Plans (ESOPs) as per the 

provisions of applicable laws.

 e) The fixed compensa�on shall comprise salary, allowances, perquisites, ameni�es and re�rement 

benefits. The variable component shall comprise of individual and company performance bonus. 

 f) In determining the remunera�on (including the fixed increment and performance bonus) the 

Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee shall consider the following: 

  - The rela�onship of remunera�on and performance benchmarks is clear; 

  - Balance between fixed and incen�ve pay reflec�ng short and long-term performance objec�ves 

appropriate to the working of the company and its goals; 

  - Responsibility required to be shouldered by the above said Directors and the industry 

benchmarks and the current trends; 

  - The Company's performance vis-à-vis the annual budget achievement and individual 

performance vis- à-vis the Key Responsibility Areas (KRAs) / Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). 

 g) Execu�ve Directors are not en�tled to si�ng fees for a�ending mee�ng of directors. 

  The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee will consider the performance against measurable 

parameters and also have subjec�ve assessment of individual while fixa�on / revisions of 

remunera�on.

3.       STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

 The Stakeholders' Rela�onship Commi�ee has been cons�tuted to specifically look into 

transfer/transmission/demat/remat of shares, issue of duplicate/split/consolida�on of share cer�ficates, 

no�ces and to a�end shareholder's complaints on SCORES system of SEBI or otherwise etc. 

 Mr. Anil Khanna, Independent Non Execu�ve Director is Chairman of the commi�ee. The present 

composi�on of Stakeholders' Rela�onship Commi�ee is as under: 

 This Commi�ee meets as and when required. The Company Secretary of the Company is authorized to 

authen�cate the transfers/transmissions/issue of duplicate share cer�ficates etc. All requests for 

dematerializa�on of shares are processed and confirmed by M/s Karvy Computershare Private Limited, 

Registrars and Share Transfer Agents of the Company.   

Name Category  Designa�on  
Mr. Anil Khanna  Independent Non Execu�ve Director  Chairman  
Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo  Member  
Mr. Sanjeev Masown 

 
Whole �me Director Cum Chief Financial Officer 

 
Member 

 

Chairman & Managing Director 



Complaints pending as on 1st
 April, 2018 nil 

During the period from 1st
 April, 2018 to 31st

 March, 2019 38 
Complaints disposed off during the year ended 31st

 March, 2019 38 
Complaints unresolved to the sa�sfac�on of shareholders as on 31st

 
March, 2019

 
nil
 

Name  Designa�on 
Mr. R. K.Saboo Chairman 
Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo Member 
Mrs. Ranjana Agarwal

 
Member

 
Mr. Jagesh Khaitan Member
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 Shareholders'/Investors' complaints  

4.  CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

 In order to comply with the provisions of Sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made 

thereunder, the Board of Directors have cons�tuted a 'Corporate Social Responsibility Commi�ee. The 

Composi�on of the Commi�ee is given hereunder: 

th th rd During the year under review, three mee�ngs were held on 14  May, 2018, 9  August, 2018 and 3  

November, 2018.

 The CSR policy is available at the link h�p://www.kddl.com/html/company_policy.html of the website of 

the Company.

 SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

 The financials of the subsidiary companies viz M/s Ethos Limited, Mahen Distribu�ons Ltd, Es�ma AG,  

Pylania S.A, Satva Jewellery and Design Limited & Kamla Interna�onal Holdings S.A. have been duly 

reviewed by the audit commi�ee and Board of Directors of the company. The KDDL Board is also 

periodically reviewing all significant transac�ons entered into by the subsidiary companies. 

 The company has formulated a policy for determining the material subsidiaries and the details of such 

policy is available in the website of the company at web link h�p//www.kddl.com/html /company policy. 

html.

IV. SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION 

 General Body Mee�ngs

 (i) Loca�on, date and �me where last three Annual General Mee�ngs were held along with the special 

resolu�ons passed, are as follows:
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220 (HP)

 

 

2015-16

 

Hotel Timber 
Trail Resorts, 
Parwanoo-173 
220 (HP)

12th

 

August 
2016

 

12.30 p.m.

 

2016-17 Hotel Timber 11th August 12.30 p.m.

 Trail Resorts, 
Parwanoo-173 

 2017  

rd (ii) During the financial year under review, the following resolu�on was passed through Postal Ballot on 23  

November, 2018 :

 Mr. Ajay K Arora, Prac�cing Company Secretary was appointed as scru�nizer for the postal ballot no�ce 

dated 8th October, 2018 to conduct the Postal Ballot process in a fair and transparent manner. The 

Company had sent the postal ballot no�ce along with postal ballot form by post and e-mail to all members 

who were en�tled to receive it. The Company had also provided e-vo�ng facility as an alterna�ve.

 There is no any special resolu�on proposed to be conducted through postal ballot.

Financial 
year 

Details of 
Loca�on 

Date Time Special resolu�ons passed  

2017-18 Hotel Timber 
Trail Resorts, 

Parwanoo-173  
220 (HP) 

14th
 July, 

2018 

12:30 p.m. A) Increase the aggregate limit for investment by the 
Foreign Por�olio Investors (FPIs) and Foreign 
Ins�tu�onal Investors (FIIs) from 24 % to 49% of the 
paid up capital of the Company.

B) To increase the overall limit of investments / 
giving loans/guarantees / providing securi�es in 
terms of Sec 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

C) Further Issue of Equity Shares.

D) Approval for change in Share Capital of Material 
Subsidiary, Ethos Limited.

E) Approval of Material Related Party Transac�ons.

F) Re-appointment of Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Masown 
(DIN-03542390) as Whole �me Director-cum-Chief 
Financial Officer of the Company.

G) Further Issue of Equity Shares through 
Preferen�al Allotment.

A) To approve amendment in exis�ng Ar�cle No. 114 
of Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company.

B) To approve amendment of the Ar�cles of 
Associa�on of the Company by inser�ng a new 
Ar�cle No. 114A.

C) To approve re-appointment and remunera�on of 
Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo as Chairman & Managing 
Director

D) To authorize investment in subsidiary company 

Appointment of Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Masown as 
Whole Time Director-cum-Chief Financial Officer

 

Sr. 
No. 

Type of Resolu�on Par�culars Vo�ng Pa�ern %) 
Favor Against 

1 Special Resolu�on Further Issue of Equity Shares 
through Preferen�al Allotment 

100.00 0.00 
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 V. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

Quarterly Results  Quarterly Results are submi�ed to the Stock 
Exchanges and are also  are displayed on the 
Company’s website i.e www.kddl.com.  

Newspapers in which quarterly results are published Financial Express (English)/Jan Sa�a (Hindi) 

Any website where results or official news are displayed 
              Yes, www.kddl.com 

Whether it also displays official news releases               Yes 
The presenta�ons made to ins�tu�onal investors or to 
the analysts

 
              

Yes
 

VI. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

(a)       Annual General Mee�ng 
th Date :  11  September, 2019 

 Venue :  Timber Trail Resorts, Parwanoo, Dis. Solan (H.P.) - 173220 

 Time : 12:30 p.m.

(b)     Financial Year

st st Financial year   :  1  April, 2018  to  31   March, 2019

st For the financial year ended 31  March, 2019, results were announced on:

th th l 30  June, 2018       : 9  August, 2018
th rd l 30  September, 2018  : 3  November, 2018
st th l 31  December, 2018  : 13  February, 2019
st th l 31  March, 2019  : 28  May, 2019

For the year ending 31st March, 2019, the tenta�ve dates for announcement of the results:

th nd l 30  June, 2019       : 2  Week of August 2019
th l 30  September, 2019  : Second week of November, 2019
st l 31  December, 2019  : Second week of February, 2019
st l 31  March, 2020  : Fourth week of May, 2019

th th(c) Date of Book Closure   : 4  September, 2019 to 11  September, 2019 (both days 

       inclusive) 
th(d) Dividend Payment Date  : On or a�er 17  September, 2019

(e) Name of Stock Exchanges at which the securi�es are listed               

              (i)  BSE Limited (BSE) Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 

   Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400 001

   Scrip Code: 532054

             (ii)  Na�onal Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)

   Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C-1, G Block,

   Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051

   Scrip Code: KDDL



73

KDDL Limited

(f) Lis�ng Fees to the Stock Exchanges: The Company has paid lis�ng fees in respect of financial year 2019- 20 

to BSE Limited and Na�onal Stock Exchange of India Limited.

(g) Market Price Data

Month KDDL Price at BSE (Rs.) KDDL Price at NSE (Rs.) 

                       High                           Low                     High                          Low 
April, 2018 621.00 387.00 616.80 385.25 
May, 2018 617.00 472.65 622.05 465.15 
June, 2018 558.95 420.00 562.25 421.00 
July, 2018 523.85 439.60 508.50 441.55 
August, 2018 540.00 450.00 539.85 447.20 
September, 2018 496.40 404.00 505.00 397.10 
October, 2018 445.60 386.15 436.00 382.05 
November, 2018 498.00 395.05 495.00 391.00 
December, 2018 534.85 445.00 538.60 457.00 
January, 2019 527.00 409.00 524.90 410.25 
February, 2019 479.95 385.00 485.00 410.05 
March, 2019 530.00 406.00 478.90 423.70 

 
(h)    Performance of the Company's share price in comparison to BSE Sensex :          

(i) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA):

 Karvy Fintech Private Limited

 (Unit: KDDL Limited)

 Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot Nos. 31 & 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda,  Serilingampally Mandal, 

Hyderabad – 500032,India

 P: +91- 40-67161517; Website : www.karvyfintech.com

http://www.karvyfintech.com


Sno Category (Amount)

 

No. of 
Holders 

 

Amount (Rs.)

 

% 
Equity

1-5000

5001-10000

10001-20000

20001-30000

30001-40000

40001-50000

50001-100000

100001 and above 

Total 

   

            
% to
Holders

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

4231

356

163

55

31

21

42

60

4959

85.32

7.18

3.29

1.11

0.63

0.42

0.85

1.21

100.00

5146650

2740430

2485230

1426900

1097670

976860

3055250

99407090

116336080

4.42

2.36

2.14

1.23

0.94

0.84

2.63

85.45

100.00
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(j) Share Transfer System :

 The Company has authorised RTA for transfer/transmission/ dematerializa�on/rematerializa�on etc., who 

process the documents related thereto, on an average of once a week. The share cer�ficates are 

returned/dispatched to the shareholders by the RTA a�er necessary endorsements, normally within 15 

days from the date of receipt. 
st(k) Distribu�on of shareholding as on 31  March, 2019 :

Category Number of 
Shares

% of 
shareholding

Promoters

Indian Promoters

 

49,25,272

 

42.34

Foreign Promoters

   

3,24,150

 

2.79

Sub-total

 

(1)

  

52,49,422

 

45.12

Public

 

Alternate

 

Investment

 

Funds

   

3,03,903

 

2.61

Foreign

 

Por�olio

 

Investors

 

including

 
FIIs

 
30,64,798

 

26.34

Individuals
 

25,61,223
 

22.02

Financial Ins�tu�ons/ Banks              50  0.00

Non-Resident Indians
      

80,554
 

0.69

Clearing Members

        
5,537

 
0.05

Non Resident Indian Non 
Repatriable

 
     

26,345

 
 

0.23

Bodies Corporate

   

3,36,376

 

2.89

NBFC 2,500 0.02

Mutual Funds 2,900 0.02

Sub-total (2) 63,84,186 54.88

Grand-total (1+2) 11,633,608 100.00

st 
              Shareholding Pa�ern  as on 31 March, 2019 :
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(l) Dematerializa�on of shares and liquidity

 The Company has set up requisite facili�es for dematerializa�on of its equity shares in accordance with the 

provisions of Depository Act, 1996 with Na�onal Securi�es Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central 

Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). The Company has entered into agreements with both the 

depositories. Interna�onal Securi�es Iden�fica�on Number (ISIN) for equity shares is INE291D01011. The 
ststatus of dematerializa�on as on 31  March, 2019 is as under:

(m)  Credit Ra�ng :

 The detail of credit ra�ng obtained by the Company during the year is provided in the Board's Report, which 

forms a part of the Annual Report.

(n)  Unclaimed dividend 

 Pursuant to the provisions of sec�on 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the 

amount of dividend which remains unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of transfer to 

unclaimed/unpaid dividend account would be transferred to the “Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund” 

and the shareholders would not be able to make any claims to the amount of dividend so transferred to the 

Fund. The unclaimed dividend for the years �ll 2010-11 has already been transferred to the fund. As such, 

shareholders who have not yet encashed their dividend warrants are requested in their own interest to 

write to the Company immediately for claiming outstanding dividends declared by the Company.

 The schedule for transfer of dividend for the following years remaining unclaimed for seven years from the 

date of declara�on and which are required to be transferred by the Company to the said account is given 

below: 

Mode
 

No. of Shares
 

% (Percentage) 

Physical Form     2,94,904     2.53

Dematerializa�on  Form  (CDSL)

 
     7,99,984     6.88

Dematerializa�on

 
Form (NSDL)

1,05,38,720

  

90.59

Total 11,633,608 100.00

Year Dividend No.  Dividend unclaimed (  )₹ ) 

as on 31st
 March, 2019 

Date of declara�on  Due date for transfer  

2011-12 19 377046.00 17.09.2012 23.10.2019 
2012-13 20 145044.00 09.09.2013 15.10.2020 
2013-14 21 220110.00 06.08.2014 12.09.2021 
2014-15 22 412258.00 24.08.2015 30.09.2022 
2015-16 23 348094.00 11.03.2016 17.04.2023 
2016-17 24 404224.00 11.08.2017 17.09.2024 
2017-18

 
25

 
487497.50

 
14.07.2018

 
20.08.2025

 

o)     Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any conver�ble instruments, conversion date and likely impact on 

equity

 There are no outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any conver�ble instruments issued by the Company 

during the year.



(p)   Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging ac�vi�es : The Company is exposed to foreign 

exchange risks. The Company con�nuously evaluates exchange risks exposures and takes necessary steps 

for hedging from �me to �me to minimize the impact of fluctua�ons in exchange rate movement.

(q) Plant/Business Loca�ons :

Dial Units  1. Plot No. 3, Sector III, Parwanoo - 173220 (H.P)  
2. Haibatpur Road, Saddomajra, Derabassi-140507 (Punjab) 

Assembly Unit 1. Village Dhana, Bagbania, P.O Manpura, Tehsil Baddi, 
Dis�. Solan-173205 (H.P)  

Hands Units 1. 296-97, 5th
 Main,  Phase-IV, Cross, Peenya Industrial Area, 

Bangalore-560058  (Karnataka) 
2. 408, 2nd

 Floor, 4 th

 Main, 11th

 Cross, Peenya Industrial Area, 
Bangalore-560058 (Karnataka) 

Packaging Units 1. Plot No. 9, Sector V, Parwanoo - 173220 (H.P.) 

  
Precision Stamping Unit –

 
EIGEN

 
1.

 
408, 4th

 
Main, 11th

 
Cross, Peenya Industrial Area, Bangalore-560058  

(Karnataka)
 

2.
 

Plot No 55-A, Aerospace Industrial Area, Bangalore-560058 
 (Karnataka)
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(r)       Skills / Exper�se / Competencies of the Board of Directors

 The following is the list of core skills / exper�se / competencies iden�fied by the Board of Directors as 

required in the context of the Company's business and that the said skills are available with the Board 

Members:

Strong management and leadership experience including in areas of 

business development, strategic planning, and risk management, 

technology, manufacturing, banking, investments and finance, 

interna�onal business. Demonstrated strengths in developing talent, 

planning succession and driving change and long-term growth.

Diversity of thought, experience, knowledge, perspec�ve, genderand 

culture. Varied mix of strategic perspec�ves, and geographical focus with 

knowledge and understanding of key relevant markets and industry.

Knowledge and skills in accoun�ng and finance, business Judgment, 

general management prac�ces and processes, industry knowledge, 

macro-economic perspec�ves, human resources, labour laws, 

interna�onal markets, sales and marke�ng, and risk management. 

Personal characteris�cs matching the Company's values, such as integrity, 

accountability, and high performance standards. 

Experience in developing and implemen�ng good corporate governance 

prac�ces, maintaining board and management accountability, managing 

stakeholders' interests and Company's responsibili�es towards 

customers, employees, suppliers, regulatory bodies and the communi�es 

in which it operates.

Wide management and leadership 

experience

Diversity

Func�onal and managerial 

experience 

Personal values

Corporate governance



(s)    Address for correspondence:

 For any grievances/ complaints, shareholders may write to the company at the following address :  

 Mr. Brahm Prakash Kumar

 Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

 KDDL Limited

 Corporate Office: 'Kamla Centre', SCO 88-89

 Sector 8-C, Chandigarh-160 009

 Tel: 0172-2544378,Fax: 0172- 2548302

 Website: www.kddl.com

 Email: investor.complaints@kddl.com

(t)  All details rela�ng to financial and commercial transac�ons where Directors may have pecuniary interest 

are provided to the Board, and the interested Directors neither par�cipate in the discussion, nor do they 

vote on such ma�ers. In ma�ers other than those with pecuniary interests, the Directors are considered to 

be interested to the extent of their shareholding in the Company and following is the status of their 

shareholding as on the date of this Report:

Name of the Director  No. of equity shares held as on 31-03-2019  

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo 1557265  

Mr. Jagesh Khaitan 466  

Mr. Anil Khanna 2100  

Mr. Jai Vardhan Saboo Nil  
Mrs. Ranjana Agarwal Nil  
Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Masown 2000  
Mr. Vishal Sa�nder Sood

 
Nil

 
Mr. Sanjiv Sachar

 
1400

 
VII. Other Disclosures

 (i)  During the financial year 2018-19, there were no materially significant related party transac�ons that 

may have poten�al conflict with the interests of the Company at large. . The transac�ons with related 

par�es, as per requirements of Accoun�ng Standard 18, are disclosed in the Balance Sheet.

 (ii)  There were no non-compliance/strictures, penalty imposed on the Company by stock exchange(s) or 

SEBI or any statutory authority on any ma�ers related to the capital markets during the last three 

years.

 (iii)  The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and has established necessary Vigil Mechanism for 

Directors and employees. No person has been denied access to the Audit Commi�ee. The said policy 

has  a lso  been disc losed on the website  of  the Company under  the web l ink  :   

h�ps://www.kddl.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/12/KDDL_Whistle_Blower_Policy.pdf

 (iv)  The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons 2015. In addi�on, the Company has also adopted the following 

non-mandatory requirements to the extent men�oned below:

 l Shareholder Rights: The quarterly financial results are forwarded to the Stock Exchanges and also 

uploaded on the website of the Company.

KDDL Limited
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 l Modified opinion(s) in Audit Report: The Statutory Auditor has issued Auditors' report with 

unmodified opinion.

 l Repor�ng of Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditor of the Company reports directly to the Audit 

Commi�ee.

 (v)  The Company has framed a policy for determining Material Subsidiary and the same is available on the 

Company's website under the web link: h�ps://www.kddl.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/12/KDDL-

Policy-for-determiningMaterial-Subsidiaries.pdf 

 (vi)  The company has framed Related Party Transac�on Policy and the same is available on the Company's 

website under the web link: h�ps://www.kddl.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/12/ 

KDDL_Related_Party_Transac�ons_Policy.pdf 

 (vii)  The Board confirm that all Independent Directors of the Company fulfill the condi�ons specified in the 

SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons 2015 and are independent of the 

management.

 (viii) The Company has fully u�lized the funds raised through preferen�al allotment during the financial 

year 2018-19 for the business opera�ons of the Company.

 (ix)  During the financial year 2018-19, the Board has accepted all the recommenda�ons of its 

Commi�ees.

 (x)  Total fees for all services paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the 

statutory auditor and all en��es in the network firm/network en�ty of which the statutory auditor is a 

part, is provided in the consolidated financial statements which form part of this report.

 (xi)  Disclosures in rela�on to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and 

Redressal) Act, 2013: 

  a.  number of complaints filed during the financial year - Nil

  b.  number of complaints disposed of during the financial year - Nil

  c.  number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year - Nil 

 (xii)  Disclosure with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account : Not applicable.

 (xiii)  The Company has duly complied with the requirements specified in Regula�ons 17 to 27 and Clauses 

(b) to (i) of sub-regula�on (2) of Regula�on 46 of the Lis�ng Regula�ons.

 (xiv)  There has been no instance of non-compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report 

sub-paras (2) to (10) of Part C of Schedule V of the Lis�ng Regula�ons. 

 (xv)  The Company has obtained a cer�ficate from M/s. A. Arora & Co., Company Secretaries, confirming 

that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from 

being appointed or con�nuing as Directors of Companies by the Securi�es and Exchange Board of 

India and Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such authority and the same forms part of this report. 
st

 (xvi)  The Compliance Cer�ficate on the financial statements for the financial year ended 31  March, 2019 is 

enclosed at the end of this report.

 (xvii) Corporate Governance Cer�ficate 

  As required by Part-E of Schedule V read with  Regula�on 34(3) of the SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015, 

the cer�ficate on Corporate Governance is enclosed at the end of this report.
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(pursuant to Regula�on 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015)

To,

The  Members  of 

KDDL Limited

Plot No. 3, Sector III, 

Parwanoo, Himachal Pradesh.

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 

KDDL Limited having CIN: L33302HP1981PLC008123 and having registered office at Plot No. 3, Sector III,  

Parwanoo, Himachal Pradesh (hereina�er referred to as 'the Company'), produced before us by the Company for 

the purpose of issuing this Cer�ficate, in accordance with Regula�on 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub 

clause 10(i) of the Securi�es Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regula�ons, 2015. 

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the verifica�ons (including Directors 

Iden�fica�on Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explana�ons 

furnished to us by the Company & its officers, We hereby cer�fy that none of the Directors on the Board of the 
st Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31 March, 2019 have been debarred or disqualified 

from being appointed or con�nuing as Directors of companies by the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India, 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

 (xviii) Code for the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel

  The Company has laid down a code of conduct for the members of the Board and Senior Management 

Personnel of the Company. The code of conduct has been posted on the Company's website, i.e. 

h�ps://www.kddl.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/12/Code_of_Conduct.pdf. All the members of the 

Board and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed their compliance with the said code of conduct 
stfor the financial year ended 31  March, 2019. A declara�on to this effect, signed by Mr. Yashovardhan 

Saboo, Chairman & Managing Director of the Company is appended at the end of this report.

Sr. 
No.

 
Name of the Director

 
DIN

 
Date of appointment in the 

company
 

1. Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo 00012158  25.03.1981  

2. Mr. Jai Vardhan Saboo 00025499  12.12.2016  

3. Mr. Anil Khanna 00012232  22.12.2004  

4. Mr. Jagesh Kumar Khaitan 00026264  26.02.1990  
5. Mr. Vishal Sa�nder Sood 01780814  02.09.2015  
6. Mr. Praveen Gupta 01885287  08.11.2014  
7. Mr. Sanjiv Sachar 02013812  07.03.2017  
8. Mrs. Ranjana Agarwal 03340032  09.09.2013  
9. Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Masown 03542390  30.05.2016  

10.
 

Mr. Torsten Buchwal d
 

08269386
 

03.11.2018
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Ensuring the eligibility of  the appointment / con�nuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 

management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verifica�on. This 

cer�ficate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effec�veness 

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

th
Date: 28  May, 2019              For A. Arora & Co.,

Place: Chandigarh                      Company Secretaries

Ajay K. Arora

(Proprietor)

M No. 2191

C P No. 993

Compliance Cer�ficate

To,

The Board of Directors 
KDDL Limited,
Plot No. 3, Sector – III, 
Parwanoo, Dis� : Solan, H.P – 173220

stA.  We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31  March, 2019 and that 
to the best of their knowledge and belief: 

 (1)  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading; 

 (2)  these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed en�ty's affairs and are in compliance with 
exis�ng accoun�ng standards, applicable laws and regula�ons. 

B.  There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transac�ons entered into by the Company during the 
financial year 2018 -19 which are fraudulent, illegal or viola�ve of the Company’s code of conduct. 

C.  We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial repor�ng and that we 
have evaluated the effec�veness of internal control systems of the listed en�ty pertaining to financial repor�ng 
and we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit commi�ee, deficiencies in the design or opera�on of such 
internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rec�fy these 
deficiencies. 

D.  We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit commi�ee that: 

 1.  There are no significant changes in internal control over financial repor�ng during the year; 

 2.  There are no significant changes in accoun�ng policies during the year and that the same have  been 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 

 3.  There are no instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if 
any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system 
over financial repor�ng.

Yashovardhan Saboo                 Sanjeev Kumar Masown 
Chairman & Managing Director                                        Whole �me Director cum Chief Financial Officer  
DIN : 00012158                                                                DIN : 03542390

Place: Chandigarh
thDate : 28  May, 2019  



Cer�ficate on Corporate Governance under SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015

To the Members of

KDDL Limited

I  have examined the compliance of condi�ons of corporate governance by KDDL Limited ("the Company"), for 

the year ended on 31 March 2019, as s�pulated in Regula�on 34(3) of Chapter IV of Securi�es & Exchange Board 

of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) regula�ons, 2015.(Schedule-V Part-E)

The compliance of condi�ons of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. My examina�on 

was limited to a review of the procedures and implementa�on thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the 

compliance of the condi�ons of the Corporate Governance.  It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on 

the financial statements of the Company.

In my opinion and to the best of my informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to me, I cer�fy that the 

Company has complied with the condi�ons of Corporate Governance as s�pulated in Securi�es & Exchange 

Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) regula�ons, 2015.

I further state that this cer�ficate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 

efficiency or effec�veness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Date: 28/05/2019          MAHESH KHURANA

Place: Chandigarh          PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY

Membership No. ACS.8633

Cer�ficate of Prac�ce No.21781

Declara�on regarding compliance by Board Members and Senior Management Personnel with the 

Company's Code of Conduct

In accordance with regula�on 34(3) read with clause D of Schedule V of the Securi�es & Exchange Board of India 

(Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirement) Regula�ons, 2015, I hereby confirm that, all Directors and the 

Senior Management personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with Code of Conduct, for the financial 
styear ended 31  March, 2019. 

thDate : 28  May, 2019               For KDDL Limited

Place : Chandigarh

Yashovardhan Saboo

Chairman & Managing Director 
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES FOR THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR  2018-19

1. A brief outline of the Company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be 

undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

 The Company undertakes and/or supports various ac�vi�es/projects as no�fied by the Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs from �me to �me. The Company undertakes CSR Ac�vi�es directly or indirectly through a registered 

trust or society or any company established under Sec�on 8 of the Act for CSR objec�ves. The Company has 

framed a CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the same is placed on 

the Company's website and the web-link of the same is h�p://www.kddl.com/html/csr_policy.html 

 KDDL contribute towards CSR through charitable founda�on namely KDDL-ETHOS FOUNDATION, which is 

eligible to conduct permissible CSR ac�vity. KDDL has contributed an amount of Rs. 26.13 lakhs for the 

financial year 2018-19  to KDDL-ETHOS FOUNDATION for carrying out various CSR ac�vi�es  as permissible 

under sec�on 135 of The Companies Act, 2013 and allied rules. 

2. The Composi�on of the CSR Commi�ee consists of the following members:-

3.      Average net profit of the company for the last three financial years as per sec�on 198 of the Companies 
       Act, 2013.

 

Sr. 
No

 

Par�culars  Net Profit
( Rs. in Lakhs)

1
 
For the financial year 2017-18

 
: 1826.09

2

 

For

 
the financial year 2016 -17

 
: 1103.98

3

 

For the financial year 2015 -16

 

: 988.25

4 Total (1+2+3) 3918.32

5 Average Net Profits (Rs. 3918.32 Lakhs/3) : 1306.10

 
4. Prescribed CSR expenditure (two per cent, of the amount as in item 3 above) 

 Rs. 26.12 lakhs (being 2% of the average net profits as stated at item 3 above)

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year

 (a) Total amount spent for the financial year    Rs. 26.13 lakhs

 (b) Amount unspent, if any :   nil   

 (c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:-
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Annexure-IX

Mr. R.K. Saboo  Chairman Emeritus   Chairman 

Mr. Yashovardhan Saboo  
Chairman & Managing Director  Member 

Mrs. Ranjana Agarwal 
 

Independent Director 
 

Member 

Mr. Jagesh Khaitan Non-Execu�ve Director
 
Member 

Name Category Posi�on 

http://www.kddl.com/html/csr_policy.html


6. In case the company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit of the last three financial 

years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board 

Report.  : N.A.

 During the financial year 2018-19, the Company contributed to KDDL – Ethos Founda�on (KEF) an amount of 

Rs. 26.13 lakhs towards CSR ac�vi�es against the s�pulated amount of Rs. 26.12 lakhs.  

 KEF is a charitable trust, created exclusively for the purpose of carrying out the CSR ac�vi�es and has a 

con�nuous track record of undertaking various CSR projects.

 The expenditure is incurred from KEF based on the progress of the specific projects and as per the agreed 

�melines, milestones and the impact on the cause undertaken. KEF spent Rs. 24.68 lakhs from the 

contribu�on received from KDDL Limited. The manner of expenditure from KEF  depends upon the CSR 

ac�vi�es or projects.

 The details of projects undertaken by the KEF during the financial year 2018-19 are given below: 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (6)

S.
No.

CSR Project or 
ac�vity iden�fied 

 

Sector in which the 
Project is covered 

 

Projects or 
programs (1) 
Local area or 
other

 

(2) Specify the 
State and district 
where projects or 
programs was 
undertaken 

 

Amount Amount 
spent on the 
projects or 
programs

 

Sub-heads: 

 

(1)

 

Direct 
expendit
ure on 
projects 
or 
programs 

 

(2)

 

Overhead
s 

 

Cumula�ve 
expenditure upto 
to the repor�ng 
period 

 Amount spent: 
Direct or 
through 
implemen�ng 
agency

1. As per Sec�on
 

135 
of The Companies 
Act, 2013

 

Others 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rs. 26,13,000/-
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

N.A.
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rs. 26,13,000/-
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Through 
implemen�ng 
agency viz. 
KDDL-Ethos 
Founda�on

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

C o n t r i b u � o n  t o 
K D D L - E T H O S 
founda�on, a Trust 
established under 
The Indian Trusts 
Act, 1882, with the 
objec�ve  to render 
C S R  a c � v i � e s  a s 
stated under sec�on 
135 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 for KDDL 
L i m i t e d  a n d  i t s 
subsidiaries/ Group 
Companies
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7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Commi�ee that the implementa�on and monitoring of CSR Policy, is 

in compliance with CSR objec�ves and Policy of the company.

 The CSR Commi�ee of the Company confirms that the implementa�on and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in 

compliance with CSR objec�ves and Policy of the Company.

R.K Saboo                                                                                                                                           Yashovardhan Saboo   

Chairperson of CSR Commi�ee                                                                               Chairman & Manging Director

                                                                                                                                        DIN : 00012158                    

Place : Chandigarh
thDate : 28  May, 2019

Sr. 
No
 Par�culars

 
Amount                  
( Rs. in Lakhs)

 

1.
 

Contribu�on to Heart to Heart Society for helping the poor and needy 
pa�ents 

 
1.00

 

2. Contribu�on to Youth Technical Training Society (YTTS) towards 

Promo�ng educa�on. 
1.50  

3. Girls Educa�on through Jyo�SarupKanya  0.50  

4. Development of Slum in Saketri Village 0.09  

5. Contribu�on for the construc�on of Toilets/ Bathrooms at Crema�on -
Ground    

2.00  

6. Contribu�on to SESOMU School for infrastructure  8.00  
7. Nanhi Kali for Girls Educa�on 2.00  
8. Contribu�on to SESOMU School for infrastructure  2.00  
9. Shree Shiva ShaikshanikaSeevaAsharma for construc�on of school 

rooms.  

6.50  

10.
 

School Program in Saketri
 

0.09
 

11.
 

Contribu�on to SKS Trade India Pvt. Ltd for E -cart in Civil Hospital 
Panchkula

 

1.00
 

 
Total

 
24.68
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